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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 
    March 31,     December 31,  
    2023     2022  

    (Unaudited)       
Assets              

               
Current assets:              

Cash   $ 84,709    $ 11,016 
Accounts receivable     10,682      12,355 
Inventory     279,190      54,153 
Other current assets     73,296      45,943 

Total current assets     447,877      123,467 
               
Other assets     186,950      179,927 
Right-of-use assets     403,727      425,969 
Security deposits     50,411      1,449,808 
Fixed assets, net     2,385,138      988,536 
               
Total Assets   $ 3,474,103    $ 3,167,707 
               

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)              
               
Current liabilities:              

Accounts payable   $ 747,723    $ 798,067 
Accrued expenses     1,119,725      948,458 
Deferred revenues     10,114      11,808 
Dividends payable     150,616      137,843 
Current portion of lease liabilities     88,612      86,235 
Convertible notes payable     750,000      750,000 
Notes payable, current maturities     151,277      145,524 
Notes payable, related parties, current maturities     99,500      99,500 

Total current liabilities     3,117,567      2,977,435 
               
Long-term lease liability     318,556      341,680 
Notes payable, long-term portion     700,000      700,000 
Notes payable, related parties, long-term portion     200,000      200,000 
               
Total Liabilities     4,336,123      4,219,115 
               

Series A convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 500,000 shares authorized; 89,733 and 70,233 shares issued
and outstanding at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively     897,330      702,330 
Series B convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 300,000 shares authorized; 272,168 shares issued and
outstanding at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022     4,082,520      4,082,520 

               
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit):              

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 9,200,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2023
and December 31, 2022, respectively     -      - 
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 300,000,000 shares authorized; 70,202,907 and 67,202,907 shares issued and
outstanding at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively     70,203      67,203 
Additional paid-in capital     17,445,960      17,123,603 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)     134,270      (50,699)
Accumulated (deficit)     (23,492,303)     (22,976,365)

Total Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)     (5,841,870)     (5,836,258)
               
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)   $ 3,474,103    $ 3,167,707 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Unaudited)
 

    For the Three Months Ended  
    March 31,  
    2023     2022  
             
Revenues   $ 2,101    $ 10,147 
Cost of goods sold     967      9,956 

Gross profit     1,134      191 
               
Operating expenses:              

General and administrative     347,297      381,383 
Professional fees     103,848      171,050 
Depreciation expense     7,857      12,485 

Total operating expenses     459,002      564,918 
               
Operating loss     (457,868)     (564,727)
               
Other income (expense):              

Gain on early extinguishment of debt     -      121,372 
Interest income     -      41 
Interest expense     (58,070)     (166,192)

Total other expense     (58,070)     (44,779)
               
Net loss   $ (515,938)   $ (609,506)
               
Other comprehensive loss:              

Gain on foreign currency translation   $ 184,969    $ 16,804 
               
Net other comprehensive loss   $ (330,969)   $ (592,702)

Series A convertible preferred stock declared ($0.60 per share)     (12,773)     (10,258)
Net loss attributable to common shareholders   $ (343,742)   $ (602,960)
               
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic and diluted     68,702,907      65,605,389 
               

Net loss per share - basic and diluted   $ (0.01)   $ (0.01)
               

Dividends declared per share of common stock   $ 0.00    $ 0.00 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(Unaudited)
 

    For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023  

   
Series A

Convertible     Series B Convertible                 Additional          
Accumulated

 Other          
Total

Stockholders’  
    Preferred Stock     Preferred Stock     Common Stock     Paid-In    Subscriptions   Comprehensive    Accumulated    Equity  
    Shares     Amount     Shares     Amount     Shares     Amount    Capital     Payable     Income (Loss)     Deficit     (Deficit)  
                                                                  
Balance, December 31,
2022    70,233   $702,330     272,168   $4,082,520     67,202,907   $67,203   $17,123,603   $          -   $ (50,699) $(22,976,365) $         (5,836,258)
                                                                              
Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock sold for
cash    15,000      150,000      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      - 
                                                                              
Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock issued
for services     4,500      45,000      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      - 
                                                                              
Common stock sold for
cash     -      -      -      -      3,000,000      3,000      297,000      -      -      -      300,000 
                                                                              
Amortization of
common stock options
issued for services     -      -      -      -      -      -      38,130      -      -      -      38,130 
                                                                              
Series A convertible
preferred stock dividend
declared ($0.60 per
share)     -      -      -      -      -      -      (12,773)    -      -      -      (12,773)
                                                                              
Gain on foreign
currency translation     -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      184,969      -      184,969 
                                                                              
Net loss     -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      (515,938)    (515,938)
                                                                              
Balance, March 31,
2023    89,733   $897,330     272,168   $4,082,520     70,202,907   $70,203   $17,445,960   $ -   $ 134,270   $(23,492,303) $ (5,841,870)
 
    For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2022  

   
Series A

Convertible     Series B Convertible                 Additional          Accumulated Other         
Total

Stockholders’ 
    Preferred Stock     Preferred Stock     Common Stock     Paid-In    Subscriptions    Comprehensive     Accumulated    Equity  
    Shares     Amount     Shares     Amount     Shares     Amount    Capital     Payable     Income (Loss)     Deficit     (Deficit)  
                                                                  
Balance, December 31,
2021    65,233   $652,330     238,501   $3,577,515     65,599,565   $65,600   $16,843,656   $ 21,725   $ (64,347) $(19,916,888) $ (3,050,254)
                                                                              
Common stock issued
for services     -      -      -      -      262,066      262      21,463      (21,725)    -      -      - 
                                                                              
Amortization of
common stock options
issued for services     -      -      -      -      -      -      41,114      -      -      -      41,114 
                                                                              
Series A convertible
preferred stock dividend
declared ($0.60 per
share)     -      -      -      -      -      -      (10,258)    -      -      -      (10,258)
                                                                              
Gain on foreign
currency translation     -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      16,804      -      16,804 
                                                                              
Net loss     -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      -      (609,506)    (609,506)
                                                                              
Balance, March 31,
2022    65,233   $652,330     238,501   $3,577,515     65,861,631   $65,862   $16,895,975   $ -   $ (47,543) $(20,526,394) $ (3,612,100)

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
 

    For the Three Months Ended  
    March 31,  
    2023     2022  
Cash flows from operating activities              
Net loss   $ (515,938)   $ (609,506)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:              
Depreciation and amortization expense     7,857      12,485 
Gain on early extinguishment of debt     -      (121,372)
Amortization of debt discounts     -      142,849 
Series A preferred stock issued for services     45,000      - 
Stock options issued for services     38,130      41,114 
Decrease (increase) in assets:              

Accounts receivable     1,673      (9,469)
Inventory     (225,037)     (94,163)
Other current assets     (27,353)     91,019 
Other assets     (7,023)     - 
Right-of-use assets     22,242      33,430 
Security deposits     (16)     (291,679)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:              
Accounts payable     (50,344)     93,596 
Accrued expenses     171,267      89,690 
Deferred revenues     (1,694)     908 
Lease liability     (20,747)     (26,497)

Net cash used in operating activities     (561,983)     (647,595)
               
Cash flows from investing activities              

Purchase of fixed assets     (5,046)     (3,482)
Net cash used in investing activities     (5,046)     (3,482)
               
Cash flows from financing activities              

Proceeds from notes payable     -      600,000 
Proceeds from sale of preferred and common stock     450,000      - 

Net cash provided by financing activities     450,000      600,000 
               

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash     190,722      16,804 
               
Net increase (decrease) in cash     73,693      (34,273)

Cash - beginning     11,016      119,678 
Cash - ending   $ 84,709    $ 85,405 

               
Supplemental disclosures:              

Interest paid   $ 22,192    $ 15,694 
Income taxes paid   $ -    $ - 

               
Non-cash investing and financing transactions:              

Dividends payable   $ 12,773    $ 10,258 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
 
4



 
 

ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Note 1 – Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
 
Nature of Business
 
One World Products, Inc. (the “Company,” “we,” “our” or “us”) was incorporated in Nevada on September 2, 2014. On February 21, 2019, we entered into an Agreement and
Plan of Merger with OWP Merger Subsidiary, Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiary, and OWP Ventures, Inc. (“OWP Ventures”), which is the parent company of One World
Pharma SAS, a Colombian company (“OWP Colombia”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, we acquired OWP Ventures (and indirectly, OWP Colombia) by the merger of
OWP Merger Subsidiary with and into OWP Ventures, with OWP Ventures being the surviving entity as our wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Merger”). As a result of the Merger
(a) holders of the outstanding capital stock of OWP Ventures received an aggregate of 39,475,398 shares of our common stock; (b) options to purchase 825,000 shares of
common stock of OWP Ventures at an exercise price of $0.50 automatically converted into options to purchase 825,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of
$0.50; (c) the outstanding principal and interest under a $300,000 convertible note issued by OWP Ventures became convertible, at the option of the holder, into shares of our
common stock at a conversion price equal to the lesser of $0.424 per share or 80% of the price we sell our common stock in a future “Qualified Offering”; (d) 875,000 shares of
our common stock owned by OWP Ventures prior to the Merger were cancelled; and (e) OWP Ventures’ chief operating officer became our chief operating officer and two of
OWP Ventures’ directors became members of our board of directors. The Company’s headquarters are located in Las Vegas, Nevada, and all of its customers are expected to be
outside of the United States. On January 10, 2019, the Company changed its name from Punto Group, Corp. to One World Pharma, Inc., and on November 23, 2021, the
Company changed its name to One World Products, Inc. through the merger of One World Products, Inc., a recently formed Nevada corporation wholly-owned by the
Company, with and into the Company (the “Name Change Merger”) pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes (“NRS”). As permitted by the NRS,
the articles of merger filed with the Secretary of State of the state of Nevada to effect the Name Change Merger amended Article I of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to
change the Company’s name to “One World Products, Inc.” The Name Change Merger was effected solely to effect the change of the Company’s name, and had no effect on
the Company’s officers, directors, operations, assets or liabilities.
 
OWP Ventures is a holding company formed in Delaware on March 27, 2018 to enter and support the cannabis industry, and on May 30, 2018, it acquired OWP Colombia.
OWP Colombia is a licensed cannabis cultivation, production and distribution (export) company located in Popayán, Colombia (nearest major city is Cali). We plan to be a
producer of raw cannabis and hemp plant ingredients for both medical and industrial uses across the globe. We have received licenses to cultivate, produce and distribute the
raw ingredients of the cannabis and hemp plant for medicinal, scientific and industrial purposes. Specifically, we are one of the few companies in Colombia to receive all four
licenses, including seed use, cultivation of non-psychoactive cannabis, cultivation of psychoactive cannabis, and manufacturing allowing for extraction and export. Currently,
we own approximately 30 acres and have a covered greenhouse built specifically to cultivate high-grade cannabis and hemp. In addition, we have entered into agreements with
local farming co-operatives that include small farmers and indigenous tribe members, under which they will cultivate cannabis on up to approximately 140 acres of land using
our seeds and propagation techniques, and sell their harvested products to us on an exclusive basis. We began harvesting cannabis in the first quarter of 2019 for the purpose of
further research and development activities, quality control testing and extraction. We have been generating revenue from the sale of our seeds since the second quarter of 2020.
During the first quarter of 2022, we made payments of approximately $1,400,000 for a state of the art distillation machine that was placed in service during the second quarter
of 2023 within our vertically integrated extraction facility in which we entered into a 5-year lease on October 1, 2022, where we have combined our office and extraction
facilities into the same building.
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP) and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
 
The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company and the accompanying notes included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are unaudited. In the
opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been included. Such adjustments are of a
normal, recurring nature. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, and the accompanying notes, are prepared in accordance with GAAP and do not contain certain
information included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. The interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
should be read in conjunction with that Annual Report on Form 10-K. Results for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results that might be
expected for the entire fiscal year.
 

5



 
 

ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 

Principles of Consolidation
 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the following entities, all of which were under common control and ownership at March 31, 2023:
 

    State of    
Name of Entity   Incorporation   Relationship

One World Products, Inc.(1)   Nevada   Parent
OWP Ventures, Inc.(2)   Delaware   Subsidiary
One World Pharma S.A.S.(3)   Colombia   Subsidiary
Colombian Hope, S.A.S.(4)   Colombia   Subsidiary
Agrobase, S.A.S.(5)   Colombia   Subsidiary

 
(1) Holding company in the form of a corporation.
(2) Holding company in the form of a corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of One World Products, Inc.
(3) Wholly-owned subsidiary of OWP Ventures, Inc. since May 30, 2018, located in Colombia and legally constituted as a simplified stock company registered in the Chamber

of Commerce of Bogotá on July 18, 2017. Its headquarters are located in Bogotá.
(4) Wholly-owned subsidiary of OWP Ventures, Inc., acquired on November 19, 2019, located in Colombia and legally constituted as a simplified stock company. This

company has yet to incur any substantive income or expenses.
(5) Wholly-owned subsidiary of OWP Ventures, Inc., formed on September 12, 2019, located in Colombia and legally constituted as a simplified stock company. This

company has yet to incur any substantive income or expenses.
 
The consolidated financial statements herein contain the operations of the wholly-owned subsidiaries listed above. The Company’s headquarters are located in Las Vegas,
Nevada and substantially all of its production efforts are within Popayán, Colombia.
 
Reclassifications
 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ financial statements to conform to current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on previously
reported results of operations or retained earnings.
 
Foreign Currency Translation
 
The functional currency of the Company is Columbian Peso (COP). The Company has maintained its financial statements using the functional currency, and translated those
financial statements to the US Dollar (USD) throughout this report. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated
into the functional currency at rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated
into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Exchange gains or losses arising from foreign currency transactions are included in
the determination of net income (loss) for the respective periods.
 
Comprehensive Income
 
The Company has adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Boards (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 220, Reporting Comprehensive Income, which
establishes standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive income, its components, and accumulated balances in a full-set of general-purpose financial statements.
Accumulated other comprehensive income represents the accumulated balance of foreign currency translation adjustments.
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 

Segment Reporting
 
ASC Topic 280, “Segment Reporting,” requires use of the “management approach” model for segment reporting. The management approach model is based on the way a
company’s management organizes segments within the company for making operating decisions and assessing performance. The Company operates as a single segment and
will evaluate additional segment disclosure requirements as it expands its operations.
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
The Company discloses the fair value of certain assets and liabilities in accordance with ASC 820 – Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures (ASC 820). Under ASC 820-10-
05, the FASB establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This
Statement reaffirms that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. The adoption of this standard did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements as
reflected herein. The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses reported on the balance sheets are estimated by management to
approximate fair value primarily due to the short-term nature of the instruments.
 
Cash in Excess of FDIC Insured Limits
 
The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. Accounts are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000, under current regulations. The Company did not have any cash in excess of FDIC insured limits at March 31, 2023, and has not
experienced any losses in such accounts.
 
Revenue Recognition
 
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Under ASC 606, the Company recognizes revenue from the
commercial sales of products, licensing agreements and contracts to perform pilot studies by applying the following steps: (1) identify the contract with a customer; (2) identify
the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in the contract; and (5)
recognize revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied. The Company’s sales to date have primarily consisted of the sale of seeds. These sales include multi-element
arrangements whereby the Company collects 50% of the sale upon delivery of the sales, and the remaining 50% upon the completion of the harvest, whether the seeds result in
a successful crop, or not. In addition, the Company has a right of first refusal to purchase products resulting from the harvest. At March 31, 2023, the Company had $10,114 of
deferred revenues and $5,923 of deferred cost of goods sold, as included in other current assets on the balance sheet, that are expected to be recognized upon the customers’
completion of their future harvests.
 
Inventory
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a standard cost basis that approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Appropriate
consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterioration, and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. Our cannabis products consist of cannabis flower
grown in-house, along with produced extracts.
 
Stock-Based Compensation
 
The Company accounts for equity instruments issued to employees and non-employees in accordance with the provisions of ASC 718 Stock Compensation (ASC 718). All
transactions in which goods or services are the consideration received for the issuance of equity instruments are accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration
received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable. The measurement date of the fair value of the equity instrument issued is the
earlier of the date on which the counterparty’s performance is complete or the date at which a commitment for performance by the counterparty to earn the equity instruments is
reached because of sufficiently large disincentives for nonperformance.
 
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share
 
The basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net loss per common share is
computed by dividing the net loss adjusted on an “as if converted” basis, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus potential dilutive securities. For
the periods presented, potential dilutive securities had an anti-dilutive effect and were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per common share.
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the FASB that are adopted by the Company as of the specified effective date. If not discussed, management
believes that the impact of recently issued standards, which are not yet effective, will not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements upon adoption.
 
In October 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers,
which creates an exception to the general recognition and measurement principle for contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers acquired in a business
combination. The new guidance will require companies to apply the definition of a performance obligation under accounting standard codification ASC Topic 606 to recognize
and measure contract assets and contract liabilities (i.e., deferred revenue) relating to contracts with customers that are acquired in a business combination. Under current
GAAP, an acquirer in a business combination is generally required to recognize and measure the assets it acquires and the liabilities it assumes at fair value on the acquisition
date. The new guidance will result in the acquirer recording acquired contract assets and liabilities on the same basis that would have been recorded by the acquiree before the
acquisition under ASC Topic 606. These amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of ASU
2021-08 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements or related disclosures.
 
In May 2021, the FASB issued ASU No. 2021-04, Earnings Per Share (Topic 260), Debt – Modifications and Extinguishments (Subtopic 470-50), Compensation (Topic 718),
and Derivatives and Hedging – Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40) Issuer’s Accounting for Certain Modifications or Exchanges of Freestanding Equity
Classified Written Call Options. ASU 2021-04 addresses issuer’s accounting for certain modifications or exchanges of freestanding equity-classified written call options. ASU
2021-04 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021 and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of ASU 2021-
04 has not had a material impact on the Company’s financial statements or related disclosures.
 
In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04 establishing Topic 848, Reference Rate Reform. ASU 2020-04 contains practical expedients for reference rate reform related
activities that impact debt, leases, derivatives and other contracts. The pronouncement provides temporary optional expedients and exceptions to the current guidance on
contract modifications and hedge accounting to ease the financial reporting burdens related to the expected market transition from the London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) and other interbank offered rates to alternative reference rates. The guidance was effective upon issuance and may be applied prospectively to contract
modifications made and hedging relationships entered into or evaluated on or before December 31, 2022. The adoption of ASU 2020-04 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, as we transitioned from the London Interbank Offered Rate, commonly referred to as LIBOR, to alternative references rates, as
well as utilizing the aforementioned expedients and exceptions provided in ASU 2020-04.
 
In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, Debt–Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging–Contracts in Entity’s
Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity (ASU 2020-06), which simplifies the accounting for
convertible instruments by reducing the number of accounting models available for convertible debt instruments. This guidance also eliminates the treasury stock method to
calculate diluted earnings per share for convertible instruments and requires the use of the if converted method. The new guidance is effective for all entities for annual periods,
and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of ASU 2020-06 has not had a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements or related disclosures.
 
No other new accounting pronouncements, issued or effective during the period ended March 31, 2023, have had or are expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.
 
Note 2 –Going Concern
 
As shown in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2023, our balance of cash on hand was $84,709, and we had negative working
capital of $2,669,690 and an accumulated deficit of $23,492,303. We are too early in our development stage to project future revenue levels, and may not be able to generate
sufficient funds to sustain our operations for the next twelve months. Accordingly, we may need to raise additional cash to fund our operations. These factors raise substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
 
In the event sales do not materialize at the expected rates, management would seek additional financing and would attempt to conserve cash by further reducing expenses.
There can be no assurance that we will be successful in achieving these objectives; therefore, without sufficient financing it would be unlikely for the Company to continue as a
going concern.
 
The condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of any uncertainty as to the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The condensed consolidated financial statements also do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset
amounts, or amounts and classifications of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. Our ability to scale production and
distribution capabilities and further increase the value of our brands, is largely dependent on our success in raising additional capital.
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Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Note 3 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 
Under FASB ASC 820-10-5, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (an exit price). The standard outlines a valuation framework and creates a fair value hierarchy in order to increase the consistency and
comparability of fair value measurements and the related disclosures. Under GAAP, certain assets and liabilities must be measured at fair value, and FASB ASC 820-10-50
details the disclosures that are required for items measured at fair value.
 
The Company has certain financial instruments that must be measured under the new fair value standard. The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are measured using
inputs from the three levels of the fair value hierarchy. The three levels are as follows:
 

Level 1 - Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access at the measurement date.
 

Level 2 - Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (e.g., interest rates, yield curves, etc.), and inputs that are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means (market corroborated inputs).

 
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect our assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

 
The following schedule summarizes the valuation of financial instruments at fair value on a recurring basis in the balance sheet as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022,
respectively:
 
    Fair Value Measurements at March 31, 2023  
    Level 1     Level 2     Level 3  

Assets                     
Cash   $ 84,709    $ -    $ - 
Right-of-use asset     -      -      403,727 

Total assets     84,709      -      403,727 
Liabilities                     

Lease liabilities     -      -      407,168 
Convertible notes payable     -      750,000      - 
Notes payable     -      851,277      - 
Notes payable, related parties     -      299,500      - 

Total liabilities     -      (1,900,777)     (407,168)
  $ 84,709    $ (1,900,777)   $ (3,441)

 
    Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2022  
    Level 1     Level 2     Level 3  

Assets                     
Cash   $ 11,016    $ -    $ - 
Right-of-use asset     -      -      425,969 

Total assets     11,016      -      425,969 
Liabilities                     

Lease liabilities            -      427,915 
Convertible notes payable     -      750,000      - 
Notes payable     -      845,524      - 
Notes payable, related parties     -      299,500      - 

Total liabilities     -      (1,895,024)     (427,915)
 
There were no transfers of financial assets or liabilities between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 inputs for the three months ended March 31, 2023 or the year ended December 31,
2022.
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(Unaudited)
 
Note 4 – Inventory
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a standard cost basis that approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Appropriate
consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterioration, and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. Our cannabis products consist of cannabis flower
grown in-house, along with produced extracts. Inventory consisted of the following at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.
 

   March 31,     December 31,  
   2023     2022  

Raw materials   $ 19,215    $ 18,580 
Work in progress     37,059      1,464 
Finished goods     271,513      80,858 
Less obsolescence     (48,597)     (46,749)

Total inventory   $ 279,190    $ 54,153 
 
Note 5 – Other Current Assets
 
Other current assets included the following as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:
 

   March 31,     December 31,  
   2023     2022  

Prepaid expenses   $ 67,373    $ 39,288 
Deferred cost of goods sold     5,923      6,655 

Total   $ 73,296    $ 45,943 
 
Note 6 – Other Assets
 
Other assets consist entirely of VAT receivables in the amounts of $186,950 and $179,927 at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, which will be repaid to the
Company by the applicable taxing authority upon the successful export of the products for which the taxes were originally paid.
 
Note 7 – Security Deposits
 
Security deposits included the following as of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:
 
    March 31,     December 31,  
    2023     2022  
Refundable deposit on equipment purchase   $ 50,000    $ 50,000 
Down payment on distillation equipment     -      1,399,413 
Security deposits on leases held in Colombia     411      395 

  $ 50,411    $ 1,449,808 
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Note 8 – Fixed Assets
 
Fixed assets consist of the following at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:
 

   March 31,     December 31,  
   2023     2022  

Land   $ 138,248    $ 138,248 
Buildings     473,971      473,971 
Office equipment     30,902      30,902 
Furniture and fixtures     6,495      6,495 
Equipment and machinery     1,828,006      423,547 

    2,477,622      1,073,163 
Less: accumulated depreciation     (92,484)     (84,627)

Total   $ 2,385,138    $ 988,536 
 
Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $7,857 and $12,485 for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
 
Note 9 – Accrued Expenses
 
Accrued expenses consisted of the following at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:
 

   March 31,     December 31,  
   2023     2022  

Accrued payroll   $ 757,086    $ 613,569 
Accrued withholding taxes and employee benefits     34,336      31,632 
Accrued ICA fees and contributions     156,205      167,037 
Accrued interest     172,098      136,220 

  $ 1,119,725    $ 948,458 
 
Note 10 – Deferred Revenues
 
Arrangements with customers include multiple deliverables, consisting of an initial delivery of seeds and a contingent portion of the purchase price that is payable on the
customer’s future harvest of the plants grown from such seeds. Deferred revenues associated with these multiple-element arrangements were $10,114 and $11,808 at March 31,
2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. Related deferred cost of goods sold were $5,923 and $6,655 at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, resulting in
deferred gross margins of $4,191 and $5,153 at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively, that is expected to be recognized upon the customers’ completion of their
harvests in future periods.
 
Note 11 – Leases
 
The Company leased its 12,400 square foot extraction facility under a non-cancelable real property lease agreement that commenced on January 1, 2022 and was to expire on
December 31, 2027, at a monthly lease rate of 57,339,000 COP (approximately $15,290). The Company terminated the lease on September 30, 2022, resulting in termination
fees of approximately $7,700. A gain of $20,148 was recognized on the early extinguishment of the lease for the year ended December 31, 2022.
 
On October 1, 2022, the Company entered into a five-year non-cancelable property lease, with an automatic five year extension, for a new extraction facility with combined
office space, at a monthly lease term of 29,000,000 COP plus VAT and administration fees (approximately $6,300 in the aggregate), with annual escalation of lease payments
equal to the consumer price index, plus 2%.
 
The Company also leases a residential premise under a non-cancelable real property lease agreement that commenced on September 1, 2021 and expires on August 31, 2024, at
a monthly lease term of 3,800,000 COP (approximately $1,013), with approximately a 3% annual escalation of lease payments commencing September 1, 2022.
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(Unaudited)
 
The Company leases another residential premise under a non-cancelable real property lease agreement that commenced on June 1, 2022 and expires on May 30, 2024, at a
monthly lease term of 1,900,000 COP (approximately $507), with an 8% annual escalation of lease payments commencing June 1, 2023.
 
In addition, the Company leases its corporate offices and operational facility in Colombia under short-term non-cancelable real property lease agreements that expire within a
year. The Company doesn’t have any other office or equipment leases that would require capitalization. The office lease contains provisions requiring payment of property
taxes, utilities, insurance, maintenance and other occupancy costs applicable to the leased premise. In the locations in which it is economically feasible to continue to operate,
management expects to enter into a new lease upon expiration. The extraction facility lease contained provisions requiring payment of property taxes, utilities, insurance,
maintenance and other occupancy costs applicable to the leased premise. As the Company’s leases do not provide implicit discount rates, the Company uses an incremental
borrowing rate based on the information available at the commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments.
 
The components of lease expense were as follows:
 
    For the Three Months Ended  
    March 31,  
    2023     2022  
Operating lease cost:              

Amortization of right-of-use assets   $ 22,242    $ 33,431 
Interest on lease liabilities     7,105      26,463 
Lease payments on short term leases     -      12,590 

Total operating lease cost   $ 29,347    $ 72,484 
 
Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases was as follows:
 
    March 31,     December 31,  
    2023     2022  
Operating lease:              

Operating lease assets   $ 403,727    $ 425,969 
               

Current portion of operating lease liabilities   $ 88,612      86,235 
Noncurrent operating lease liabilities     318,556      341,680 

Total operating lease liability   $ 407,168    $ 427,915 
               
Weighted average remaining lease term:              

Operating leases     4 years      4.25 years 
               
Weighted average discount rate:              

Operating lease     6.75%    6.75%
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Supplemental cash flow and other information related to operating leases was as follows:
 
    For the Three Months Ended  
    March 31,  
    2023     2022  
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:              

Operating cash flows used for operating leases   $ 20,747    $ 26,497 
               
Leased assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities:              

Total operating lease liabilities   $ -    $ 1,535,706 
 
Future minimum annual lease commitments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows at March 31, 2023:
 
    Operating  
    Leases  
       
2023 (for the nine months remaining)   $ 84,656 
2024     107,632 
2025     99,186 
2026     102,162 
2027     78,336 

Total minimum lease payments     471,972 
Less interest     64,804 

Present value of lease liabilities     407,168 
Less current portion     88,612 

Long-term lease liabilities   $ 318,556 
 
Note 12 – Convertible Notes Payable
 
Convertible notes payable consists of the following at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:
 
    March 31,     December 31,  
    2023     2022  
On September 27, 2022, the Company completed the sale of a Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of
$750,000 (the “Convertible McCabe Note”) to Dr. John McCabe. The unsecured note matures on 16, 2024 (the
“Maturity Date”), bears interest at a rate of 8% per annum, and the principal and interest is convertible into shares of
the Company’s convertible Series B common stock at a conversion price of $15 per share.   $ 750,000    $ 750,000 
               
Total convertible notes payable     750,000      750,000 

Less: unamortized debt discounts     -      - 
Convertible note payable, net of discounts   $ 750,000    $ 750,000 
 
The Company recorded interest expense pursuant to the stated interest rates on the convertible note in the amount of $14,795 for both the three months ended March 31, 2023
and 2022.
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Note 13 – Notes Payable
 
    March 31,     December 31,  
    2023     2022  
             
On September 15, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, One World Pharma, SAS, received
proceeds of 55,488,000 COP, or approximately $12,243, on a loan with a face value of 70,000,000 COP, or
approximately $15,445, from an individual pursuant to an unsecured promissory note, bearing interest at 4% per month,
or 48% per annum, due on demand. The debt discount of $3,202 was expensed as finance costs at the time of
origination. The face value of the note has been adjusted by $317 due to foreign currency translation adjustments.   $ 15,128    $ 14,552 
               
On June 17, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, One World Pharma, SAS, received proceeds of
230,400,000 COP, or approximately $55,821, on a loan with a face value of 240,000,000 COP, or approximately
$58,147, from an individual pursuant to an unsecured promissory note, bearing interest at 4% per month, or 48% per
annum, due on demand. The debt discount of $2,326 was expensed as finance costs at the time of origination. The face
value of the note has been adjusted by $3,955 due to foreign currency translation adjustments.     51,866      49,894 
               
On June 13, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, OWP Ventures, Inc., received an advance of
$100,000 from an individual pursuant to an unsecured promissory note, maturing on January 1, 2024, that carries an
8% interest rate.     100,000      100,000 
               
On May 31, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, One World Pharma, SAS, received proceeds of
314,640,000 COP, or approximately $76,231, on a loan with a face value of 360,000,000 COP, or approximately
$87,220, from an individual pursuant to promissory note, security by equipment, bearing interest at 2.1% per month, or
25% per annum, which matured on November 28, 2022 and is currently past due. The debt discount of $10,990 was
expensed as finance costs at the time of origination. The face value of the note has been adjusted by $9,420 due to
foreign currency translation adjustments.     77,800      74,841 
               
On May 30, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, One World Pharma, SAS, received a non-
interest bearing loan of 20,000,000 COP, or approximately $4,846, from an individual pursuant to an unsecured
promissory note, due on demand. The face value of the note has been adjusted by $524 due to foreign currency
translation adjustments.     4,322      4,158 
               
On April 29, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, One World Pharma, SAS, received a non-
interest bearing loan of 10,000,000 COP, or approximately $2,423, from an individual pursuant to an unsecured
promissory note, due on demand. The face value of the note has been adjusted by $262 due to foreign currency
translation adjustments.     2,161      2,079 
               
On March 1, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, OWP Ventures, Inc., received an advance of
$400,000 from an individual pursuant to an unsecured promissory note, maturing on January 1, 2024, that carries an
8% interest rate.     400,000      400,000 
               
On February 15, 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, OWP Ventures, Inc., received an advance of
$200,000 from an individual pursuant to an unsecured promissory note, maturing on January 1, 2024, that carries an
8% interest rate.     200,000      200,000 
               
Total notes payable     851,277      845,524 

Less: current maturities     151,277      145,524 
Notes payable, long-term portion   $ 700,000    $ 700,000 
 
The Company recorded interest expense pursuant to the stated interest rates on the notes payable in the amount of $37,808 and $3,888 for the three months ended March 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Note 14 – Notes Payable, Related Party
 
Notes payable, related party, consists of the following at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:
 
    March 31,     December 31,  
    2023     2022  
             
On August 5, 2022, the Company received an advance of $50,000 from Dr. Kenneth Perego, II, M.D., our Vice
Chairman of the Board pursuant to an unsecured promissory note due on demand that carries a 6% interest rate.   $ 50,000    $ 50,000 
               
On August 2, 2022, the Company received an advance of $4,500 from Isiah Thomas, III, our Chairman of the Board
and CEO, pursuant to an unsecured promissory note due on demand that carries a 6% interest rate.     4,500      4,500 
               
On July 7, 2022, the Company received an advance of $5,000 from Dr. Kenneth Perego, II, M.D., our Vice Chairman of
the Board pursuant to an unsecured promissory note due on demand that carries a 6% interest rate.     5,000      5,000 
               
On June 3, 2022, the Company received an advance of $10,000 from Isiah Thomas, III, our Chairman of the Board and
CEO, pursuant to an unsecured promissory note due on demand that carries a 6% interest rate.     10,000      10,000 
               
On May 5, 2022, the Company received an advance of $10,000 from Isiah Thomas, III, our Chairman of the Board and
CEO, pursuant to an unsecured promissory note due on demand that carries a 6% interest rate.     10,000      10,000 
               
On May 5, 2022, the Company received an advance of $20,000 from Dr. Kenneth Perego, II, M.D., our Vice Chairman
of the Board pursuant to an unsecured promissory note due on demand that carries a 6% interest rate.     20,000      20,000 
               
On December 29, 2021, the Company received an advance of $200,000 from Dr. Kenneth Perego, II, M.D., our Vice
Chairman of the Board pursuant to an unsecured promissory note due January 1, 2024 that carries an 8% interest rate.     200,000      200,000 
               
Total notes payable. related party     299,500      299,500 

Less: current maturities     99,500      99,500 
Notes payable, related party, long-term portion   $ 200,000    $ 200,000 
 
The Company recorded interest expense pursuant to the stated interest rates on the notes payable, related party, in the amount of $5,467 and $3,967 for the three months ended
March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
 
The Company recognized interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, as follows:
 
    March 31,     March 31,  
    2023     2022  
           
Interest on convertible notes   $ 14,795    $ 14,795 
Interest on notes payable     37,808      3,888 
Interest on notes payable, related party     5,467      3,967 
Amortization of debt discounts     -      17,569 
Amortization of debt discounts, common stock     -      37,002 
Amortization of debt discounts, warrants     -      88,278 
Interest on accounts payable     -      693 

Total interest expense   $ 58,070    $ 166,192 
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Note 15 – Convertible Preferred Stock
 
Preferred Stock
 
The Company has 10,000,000 authorized shares of $0.001 par value “blank check” preferred stock, of which 500,000 shares have been designated Series A Preferred Stock and
600,000 shares have been designated Series B Preferred Stock, as amended on August 2, 2022. The shares of Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock are each
currently convertible into one hundred (100) shares of the Company’s common stock. The Series A Preferred Stock accrues dividends at the rate of 6% per annum, payable in
cash as and when declared by the Board or upon a liquidation. The shares of Series B Preferred Stock are not entitled to dividends, other than the right to participate in
dividends payable to holders of common stock on an as-converted basis. As of March 31, 2023, there were 89,733 and 272,168 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and Series B
Preferred Stock, respectively, issued and outstanding. The Series A and B Preferred Stock are presented as mezzanine equity on the balance sheet due because they carry a
stated value of $10 and $15 per share, respectively, and a deemed liquidation clause, which entitles the holders thereof to receive proceeds thereof in an amount equal to the
stated value per share, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends, before any payment may be made to holders of common stock. Each share of Preferred Stock carries a number of
votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which such Preferred Stock may then be converted. The Preferred Stock generally will vote together with the
common stock and not as a separate class.
 
The Series A and B Preferred Stock have been classified outside of permanent equity and liabilities. the Series A Preferred Stock embodies conditional obligations that the
Company may settle by issuing a variable number of equity shares, and in both the Series A and B Preferred Stock, monetary value of the obligation is based on a fixed
monetary amount known at inception.
 
Series A Preferred Stock Sales
 
On various dates between January 4, 2023 and January 27, 2023, the Company received total proceeds from three accredited investors of $150,000 from the sale of 15,000
units, consisting in the aggregate of 15,000 shares of series A preferred stock and five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate 1,500,000 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $0.25 per share. The proceeds received were allocated between the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants on a relative fair value basis.
 
Series A Preferred Stock Issued for Services, Consultants
 
On January 1, 2023, the Company issued 4,500 shares of series A preferred stock in consideration of consulting services. The fair value of the shares was $45,000, based on
recent sales prices of the Company’s series A preferred stock on the date of grant.
 
Preferred Stock Dividends
 
The Series A Preferred Stock accrues dividends at the rate of 6% per annum, payable in cash as and when declared by the Board or upon a liquidation. The Company
recognized $12,773 and $10,258 for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. A total of $150,616 of dividends had accrued as of March 31, 2023.
 
Series B Preferred Stock Issuances
 
No shares of Series B Preferred Stock were issued during the three months ending March 31, 2023.
 
Note 16 – Commitments and Contingencies
 
Equity Line of Credit
 
On September 1, 2022, the Company entered into a Purchase Agreement (the “ELOC Purchase Agreement”) with Tysadco Partners, LLC (“Tysadco”). Pursuant to the ELOC
Purchase Agreement, Tysadco has agreed to purchase from the Company, from time to time upon delivery by the Company to Tysadco of “Request Notices,” and subject to the
other terms and conditions set forth in the ELOC Purchase Agreement, up to an aggregate of $10,000,000 of the Company’s common stock. The purchase price of the shares of
common stock to be purchased under the Purchase Agreement will be equal to 88% of the lowest daily “VWAP” during the period of 10 trading days beginning five trading
days preceding the applicable Request. Each purchase under the Purchase Agreement will be in a minimum amount of $25,000 and a maximum amount equal to the lesser of (i)
$1,000,000 and (ii) 500% of the average daily trading value of the common stock over the seven trading days preceding the delivery of the applicable Request Notice.
 
In connection with the ELOC Purchase Agreement, the Company entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with Tysadco under which the Company agreed to file a
registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission covering the shares of common stock issuable under the ELOC Purchase Agreement and conversion of the
Commitment Fee Shares (the “Registration Rights Agreement”). There have not been any advances on this arrangement to date.
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Commitment for the Sale of Series B Preferred Stock
 
On October 3, 2022, the Company and ISIAH International, LLC (“ISIAH International”), an entity in which the Company’s CEO, Isiah L. Thomas, III, is the sole member,
entered into a securities purchase agreement under which ISIAH International has agreed to purchase from the Company an aggregate of 33,333 shares of the Company’s Series
B Preferred Stock initially convertible into an aggregate of three million three hundred thirty three thousand three hundred (3,333,300) shares of the Company’s common stock,
for a total purchase price of $499,995. To date, no purchases under this agreement have occurred.
 
Note 17 – Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
 
Common Stock
 
The Company is authorized to issue an aggregate of 300,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.001. As of March 31, 2023, there were 70,202,907 shares of
common stock issued and outstanding.
 
Common Stock Sales
 
On February 14, 2023, the Company sold 3,000,000 shares of common stock at a price of $0.10 per share for total cash proceeds of $300,000.
 
Amortization of Stock-Based Compensation
 
A total of $38,130 and $41,114 of stock-based compensation expense was recognized from the amortization of options to purchase common stock over their vesting period
during the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
 
Note 18 – Common Stock Options
 
Stock Incentive Plan
 
On February 12, 2020, the Company’s stockholders approved our 2019 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2019 Plan”), which had been adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors
(the “Board”) as of December 10, 2019. The 2019 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of common stock to the Company and its subsidiaries’ employees,
officers, directors, consultants and advisors, stock options (non-statutory and incentive), restricted stock awards, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), restricted stock units
(“RSUs”) and other performance stock awards. Options granted under the 2019 Plan may either be intended to qualify as incentive stock options under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, or may be non-qualified options, and are exercisable over periods not exceeding ten years from date of grant. Unless sooner terminated in accordance with its
terms, the Stock Plan will terminate on December 10, 2029.
 
The Company recognized a total of $38,130, and $41,114 of compensation expense during the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, related to common
stock options issued in the prior year to officers, directors, and employees that are being amortized over the implied service term, or vesting period, of the options. The
remaining unamortized balance of these options is $93,897 as of March 31, 2023.
 
Note 19 – Income Taxes
 
The Company accounts for income taxes under FASB ASC 740-10, which requires use of the liability method. FASB ASC 740-10-25 provides that deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recorded based on the differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, referred to as
temporary differences.
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2023, and the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company incurred a net operating loss and, accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been recorded. In addition, no benefit for income taxes has been recorded due to the uncertainty of the realization of any tax assets. At March 31, 2023, the Company had
approximately $9,476,000 of federal net operating losses. The net operating loss carry forwards, if not utilized, will begin to expire in 2025.
 
Based on the available objective evidence, including the Company’s history of its loss, management believes it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will not be
fully realizable. Accordingly, the Company provided for a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets at March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively.
 
In accordance with FASB ASC 740, the Company has evaluated its tax positions and determined there are no uncertain tax positions.
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ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(Unaudited)
 
Note 20 – Subsequent Events
 
The Company evaluates events that have occurred after the balance sheet date through the date these financial statements were issued.
 
Debt Offering & Commitment Fee Stock Issuance
 
On June 23, 2023, the Company completed the sale of a Promissory Note in the principal amount of $300,000 (the “Third AJB Note”) to AJB Capital Investments LLC (“AJB
Capital”) for an aggregate purchase price of $276,000, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and AJB Capital (the “Purchase Agreement”). The
Company received net proceeds of $262,500 after deduction of an original issue discount of $24,000, $7,500 of legal fees and a $6,000 broker fee, which are being amortized as
a debt discount over the life of the loan.
 
The Third AJB Note matures on March 23, 2024 (the “Maturity Date”), bears interest at a rate of 12% per annum, and, following an event of default only, is convertible into
shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to the lesser of the Volume Weighted Average Price (“VWAP”) during (i) the 10 trading day period
preceding the issuance date of the note, or (ii) the 10 trading day period preceding date of conversion of the Note. The Note is also subject to covenants, events of defaults,
penalties, default interest and other terms and conditions customary in transactions of this nature.
 
Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company paid a commitment fee to AJB Capital in the amount of $100,000 (the “Commitment Fee”) in the form of 1,666,667 shares
of the Company’s common stock (the “Commitment Fee Shares”). During the period commencing on the six-month anniversary of the closing date and ending on the five-year
anniversary of the closing date, AJB Capital is entitled to be issued additional shares of common stock or receive a cash payment to the extent AJB Capital’s sale of the
Commitment Fee Shares has resulted in net proceeds in an amount less than the Commitment Fee. The Commitment Fee Shares resulted in a debt discount of $121,667 that is
being amortized over the life of the loan.
 
In connection with the issuance of the Third AJB Note and Commitment Fee Shares, the Company entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with AJB Capital in which the
Company agreed to file a registration statement with the SEC within 180 days of June 23, 2023, registering the shares of common stock issuable under the Third AJB Note and
Purchase Agreement.
 
Series A Preferred Stock Sale
 
On April 3, 2023, the Company received $100,000 from the sale of 10,000 units, consisting in the aggregate of 10,000 shares of series A preferred stock and five-year warrants
to purchase an aggregate 1,000,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per share to an accredited investor. The proceeds received were allocated between the
Series A Preferred Stock and warrants on a relative fair value basis.
 
Common Stock Issued for Services
 
On June 15, 2023, the Company issued 1,500,000 shares of common stock to Mr. Joerg Sommer in consideration of his appointment as the Company’s President. The fair value
of the shares was $89,850, based on the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 

The information contained in this Form 10-Q is intended to update the information contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2022 and presumes that readers have access to, and will have read, the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and other
information contained in such Form 10-K. The following discussion and analysis also should be read together with our financial statements and the notes to the financial
statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q.
 

The following discussion contains certain statements that may be deemed “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Such statements appear in a number of places in this Report, including, without limitation, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.” These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and requirements that are difficult to predict or are beyond
our control. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this quarterly report. You should not put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. We strongly
encourage investors to carefully read the factors described in the Form 10-K in the section entitled “Risk Factors” for a description of certain risks that could, among other
things, cause actual results to differ from these forward-looking statements. We assume no responsibility to update the forward-looking statements contained in this quarterly
report on Form 10-Q. The following should also be read in conjunction with the unaudited Financial Statements and notes thereto that appear elsewhere in this report.
 
Overview
 

Through our wholly-owned subsidiary, One World Pharma S.A.S, a licensed cannabis cultivation, production and distribution (export) company located in Popayán,
Colombia (nearest major city is Cali). We plan to be a producer of raw cannabis and hemp plant ingredients for both medical and industrial uses across the globe. We have
received licenses to cultivate, produce and distribute the raw ingredients of the cannabis and hemp plant for medicinal, scientific and industrial purposes. Specifically, we are
one of the only companies in Colombia to receive seed, cultivation, extraction and export licenses from the Colombian government. Currently, we own approximately 30 acres
and have a covered greenhouse built specifically to cultivate high-grade cannabis and hemp. In addition, we have entered into agreements with local farming co-operatives that
include small farmers and indigenous tribe members, under which they will cultivate cannabis on up to approximately 140 acres of land using our seeds and propagation
techniques, and sell their harvested products to us on an exclusive basis. We planted our first crop of cannabis in 2018, which we began harvesting in the first quarter of 2019
for the purpose of further research and development activities and quality control testing of the cannabis we have produced. We have been generating revenue from the sale of
our seeds since the second quarter of 2020. From August 2021 through March 2022, we made payments of approximately $1,400,000 for the purchase of a state of the art
distillation machine that was placed in service within our vertically integrated extraction facility during the second quarter of 2023. Once the equipment is placed in service, we
will be one of the only companies in Colombia to both hold licenses and possess the capability to extract high-quality CBD and THC oils. We terminated our lease on
September 30, 2022, and during the fourth quarter of 2022, have begun to install the equipment at a new extraction facility. We entered into a 5-year lease at this new location
on October 1, 2022, where we have combined our office and extraction facilities into the same building. The new facility is approximately half the cost of the former, and
already contained the necessary electrical and epoxy floors, which has significantly reduce our tenant improvement costs.
 

We recently added to our product pipeline premium coffee certified by the Colombian National Coffee Federation infused with CBD, teas infused with CBD and a
series of wellness products, including sports CBD energy drinks for optimum performance, CBD facial and body creams for anti-inflammatory and anti-aging use. We expect to
start exporting products in 2023, including CBD flower and distillate oil, while developing white label commercial agreements with partners in Europe, USA, and Latin
America.
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Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 and 2022:
 

The following table summarizes selected items from the statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.
 

    Three Months Ended March 31,     Increase /  
    2023     2022     (Decrease)  

Revenues   $ 2,101    $ 10,147    $ (8,046)
Cost of goods sold     967      9,956      (8,989)

Gross profit     1,134      191      943 
                      
Operating expenses:                     

General and administrative     347,297      381,383      (34,086)
Professional fees     103,848      171,050      (67,202)
Depreciation expense     7,857      12,485      (4,628)

Total operating expenses:     459,002      564,918      (105,916)
                      
Operating loss     (457,868)     (564,727)     (106,859)
                      

Total other expense     (58,070)     (44,779)     13,291 
                      

Net loss   $ (515,938)   $ (609,506)   $ (93,568)
 
Revenues
 

Revenues during the three months ended March 31, 2023 were $2,101, compared to $10,147 during the three months ended March 31, 2022, a decrease of $8,046, or
79%. Revenues decreased as we transitioned to new management at our operating facility.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Cost of goods sold for the three months ended March 31, 2023 were $967, compared to $9,956 for the three months ended March 31, 2022, a decrease of $8,989, or
90%. Cost of goods sold consists primarily of labor, agricultural raw materials, depreciation and overhead.
 
General and Administrative Expenses
 

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2023 were $347,297, compared to $381,383 during the three months ended March 31,
2022, a decrease of $34,086, or 9%. The expenses for the current period consisted primarily of compensation expenses, office rent, and travel costs. General and administrative
expenses decreased primarily due to decreased salaries and wages and lease expenses in Colombia over the prior year, as we transitioned to new management. General and
administrative expenses included non-cash, stock-based compensation of $29,347 and $29,347 during the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
 
Professional Fees
 

Professional fees for the three months ended March 31, 2023 were $103,848, compared to $171,050 during the three months ended March 31, 2022, a decrease of
$67,202, or 39%. Professional fees included non-cash, stock-based compensation of $53,783 and $11,767 during the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Professional fees decreased primarily due to decreased legal fees during the current period.
 
Depreciation Expense
 

Depreciation expense for the three months ended March 31, 2023 was $7,857, compared to $12,485 during the three months ended March 31, 2022, a decrease of
$4,628, or 37%. Depreciation expense decreased due to the prior year disposal of office equipment.
 
Other Income (Expense)
 

Other expenses, on a net basis, for the three months ended March 31, 2023 were $58,070, compared to other expenses, on a net basis, of $44,779 during the three
months ended March 31, 2022, an increase in net expenses of $13,291, or 30%. Other expenses consisted entirely of $58,070 of interest expense for the three months ended
March 31, 2023, compared to $166,192 of interest expense, including $125,280 of stock-based finance costs on the amortization of debt discounts, as partially offset by a gain
on early extinguishment of debt of $121,372 on the forgiveness of a PPP Loan and $41 of interest income, during the three months ended March 31, 2022.
 
Net Loss
 

Net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2023 was $515,938, or $0.01 per share, compared to $609,506, or $0.01 per share, during the three months ended
March 31, 2022, a decrease of $93,568, or 15%. The net loss decreased primarily due to decreased compensation and office expenses during the current period as we
transitioned to new management over our Colombian subsidiary.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

The following is a summary of the Company’s cash flows provided by (used in) operating, investing, financing activities and effect of exchange rate changes on cash for
the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022:
 

    2023     2022  
Operating Activities   $ (561,983)   $ (647,595)
Investing Activities     (5,046)     (3,482)
Financing Activities     450,000      600,000 
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash     190,722      16,804 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash   $ 73,693    $ (34,273)
 
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities
 

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, net cash used in operating activities was $561,983, compared to net cash used in operating activities of $647,595 for the
three months ended March 31, 2022. The cash used in operating activities was primarily attributable to our net loss.
 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
 

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, net cash used in investing activities was $5,046, compared to net cash used in investing activities of $3,482 for the three
months ended March 31, 2022. The cash used in investing activities consisted entirely of purchases of fixed assets.
 
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
 

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, net cash provided by financing activities was $450,000, compared to net cash provided by financing activities of
$600,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The current period consisted of $150,000 of proceeds received on the sale of preferred stock and $300,000 from the sale
of common stock, compared to $600,000 of proceeds received on debt financing during the three months ended March 31, 2022.
 
Ability to Continue as a Going Concern
 

As of March 31, 2023, our balance of cash on hand was $84,709, and we had negative working capital of $2,669,690 and an accumulated deficit of $23,492,303. We
are too early in our development stage to project future revenue levels, and may not be able to generate sufficient funds to sustain our operations for the next twelve months.
Accordingly, we may need to raise additional cash to fund our operations. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
 

In the event sales do not materialize at the expected rates, management would seek additional financing and would attempt to conserve cash by further reducing
expenses. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in achieving these objectives; therefore, without sufficient financing it would be unlikely for the Company to
continue as a going concern.
 

The condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of any uncertainty as to the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The condensed consolidated financial statements also do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded
asset amounts, or amounts and classifications of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. Our ability to scale
production and distribution capabilities and further increase the value of our brands, is largely dependent on our success in raising additional capital.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 

We have no outstanding off-balance sheet guarantees, interest rate swap transactions or foreign currency contracts. We do not engage in trading activities involving
non-exchange traded contracts.
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires our management to make
assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported, including the notes thereto, and related disclosures of commitments and contingencies, if any. We have
identified certain accounting policies that are significant to the preparation of our financial statements. These accounting policies are important for an understanding of our
financial condition and results of operations. Critical accounting policies are those that are most important to the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations
and require management’s subjective or complex judgment, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and may
change in subsequent periods. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting the estimate may differ significantly from management’s current judgments.
 

While our significant accounting policies are more fully described in notes to our consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-Q, we believe
that the following accounting policies are the most critical to aid you in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results and affect the more significant
judgments and estimates that we used in the preparation of our financial statements.
 
Revenue Recognition
 

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Under ASC 606, the Company recognizes revenue from
the commercial sales of products, licensing agreements and contracts to perform pilot studies by applying the following steps: (1) identify the contract with a customer; (2)
identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in the contract; and (5)
recognize revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied. The Company’s sales to date have primarily consisted of the sale of seeds. These sales include multi-element
arrangements whereby the Company collects 50% of the sale upon delivery of the sales, and the remaining 50% upon the completion of the harvest, whether the seeds result in
a successful crop, or not. In addition, the Company has a right of first refusal to purchase products resulting from the harvest. At March 31, 2023, the Company had $10,114 of
deferred revenues and $5,923 of deferred cost of goods sold, as included in other current assets on the balance sheet, that are expected to be recognized upon the customers’
completion of their future harvests.
 
Inventory
 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a standard cost basis that approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
Appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterioration, and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. Our cannabis products consist of
cannabis flower grown in-house, along with produced extracts.
 
Stock-Based Compensation
 

The Company accounts for equity instruments issued to employees and non-employees in accordance with the provisions of ASC 718 Stock Compensation (ASC 718).
All transactions in which goods or services are the consideration received for the issuance of equity instruments are accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration
received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable. The measurement date of the fair value of the equity instrument issued is the
earlier of the date on which the counterparty’s performance is complete or the date at which a commitment for performance by the counterparty to earn the equity instruments is
reached because of sufficiently large disincentives for nonperformance.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 

As a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Item 10 of Regulation S-K, the Company is not required to provide the information required by this Item
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of March 31, 2023. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls and
other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated
and communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their
objectives, and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of March 31, 2023, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective at the reasonable assurance level.

 
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

 
There have been no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) or in

other factors that occurred during the period of our evaluation or subsequent to the date we carried out our evaluation which have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. The design of any system of controls and procedures is based in part upon certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events. There can be no assurance that any system of controls and procedures will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions,
regardless of how remote.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

We are not a party to any legal or administrative proceedings that we believe, individually or in the aggregate, would be likely to have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or results of operations.
 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
 

As a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Item 10 of Regulation S-K, the Company is not required to provide the information required by this Item.
 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 

The following issuances of equity securities by the Company during the three month period ended March 31, 2023 were exempt from the registration requirements of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) thereof and Regulation D thereunder:

 
Series A Preferred Stock Sales

 
On January 27, 2023, the Company issued 10,000 shares of series A preferred stock, restricted in accordance with Rule 144, to an accredited investor for proceeds of

$100,000.
 

On January 9, 2023, the Company issued 2,500 shares of series A preferred stock, restricted in accordance with Rule 144, to an accredited investor for proceeds of
$25,000.
 

On January 4, 2023, the Company issued 2,500 shares of series A preferred stock, restricted in accordance with Rule 144, to an accredited investor for proceeds of
$25,000.

 
Series A Preferred Stock Issued for Services

 
On January 1, 2023, the Company issued 4,500 shares of series A preferred stock, restricted in accordance with Rule 144, to an accredited investor for services

provided. The fair value of the shares was $45,000, based on recent sales prices of the Company’s series A preferred stock on the date of grant.
 
Common Stock Sales
 

On February 14, 2023, the Company issued 3,000,000 shares of common stock, restricted in accordance with Rule 144, to an accredited investor for proceeds of
$300,000.
 

In connection with the above security issuances, we did not pay any underwriting discounts or commissions. None of the sales of securities described or referred to
above was registered under the Securities Act. In making the sales without registration under the Securities Act, we relied upon one or more of the exemptions from registration
contained in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, and in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act. No general solicitation or advertising was used in connection with
the sales.
 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
 

None.
 
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
 

Not applicable.
 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
 

On June 23, 2023, the Company completed the sale of a Promissory Note in the principal amount of $300,000 (the “Third AJB Note”) to AJB Capital Investments
LLC (“AJB Capital”) for an aggregate purchase price of $276,000, pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and AJB Capital (the “Purchase
Agreement”). The Company received net proceeds of $262,500 after deduction of an original issue discount of $24,000, $7,500 of legal fees and a $6,000 of broker fee, which
are being amortized as a debt discount over the life of the loan.

 
The Third AJB Note matures on March 23, 2024 (the “Maturity Date”), bears interest at a rate of 12% per annum, and, following an event of default only, is

convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to the lesser of the Volume Weighted Average Price (“VWAP”) during (i) the 10 trading day
period preceding the issuance date of the note, or (ii) the 10 trading day period preceding date of conversion of the Note. The Note is also subject to covenants, events of
defaults, penalties, default interest and other terms and conditions customary in transactions of this nature.

 
Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company paid a commitment fee to AJB Capital in the amount of $100,000 (the “Commitment Fee”) in the form of

1,666,667 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Commitment Fee Shares”). During the period commencing on the six-month anniversary of the closing date and
ending on the five-year anniversary of the closing date, AJB Capital is entitled to be issued additional shares of common stock or receive a cash payment to the extent AJB
Capital’s sale of the Commitment Fee Shares has resulted in net proceeds in an amount less than the Commitment Fee. The Commitment Fee Shares resulted in a debt discount
of $121,667 that is being amortized over the life of the loan.

 
In connection with the issuance of the Third AJB Note and Commitment Fee Shares, the Company entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with AJB Capital in

which the Company agreed to file a registration statement with the SEC within 180 days of June 23, 2023, registering the shares of common stock issuable under the Third AJB
Note and Purchase Agreement.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
 
Exhibit   Description
2.1   Agreement and Plan of Merger dated February 21, 2019, among the Registrant, OWP Merger Subsidiary Inc. and OWP Ventures, Inc. (incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 2.1 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by the Company on February 25, 2019)
3.1   Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on November 24, 2014)
3.2   Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 8, 2019)
3.3   Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 25, 2020)
3.4   Certificate of Designation of Series A Preferred Stock of the Registrant dated June 1, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of the Registrant’s Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 26, 2020)
3.5   Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on November 24, 2014)
3.6   Certificate of Designation of Series B Preferred Stock of the Registrant dated February 2, 2021 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 8, 2021)
4.1*   Promissory Note of the Company in the Principal Amount of $300,000 issued to AJB Capital Investments LLC, dated June 23, 2023
10.1   2019 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission by the Company on February 25, 2020)
10.2   Form of Stock Option Grant Notice for grants under the 2019 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report

on Form 8-K filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 25, 2020)
10.3   Form of Option Agreement for grants under the 2019 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form

8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 25, 2020)
10.4   Letter Agreement between the Company and Isiah L. Thomas, III, dated June 3, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Form 8-K filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission by the Company on June 9, 2020)
10.5*   Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2023, between the Company and AJB Capital Investments LLC
10.6   Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 7, 2021, between the Company and ISIAH International LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of

the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by the Company on February 8, 2021)
10.7*   Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 23, 2023, between the Company and AJB Capital Investments LLC
10.8   Commercial Lease Agreement dated November 26, 2021, between R&B Inversiones S.A.S. and One World Pharma S.A.S. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.10 of the Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by One World Products, Inc. on May 16, 2022)
10.9   Purchase Agreement, dated September 1, 2022, between One World Products, Inc. and Tysadco Partners, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the

Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by One World Products, Inc. on September 7, 2022)
10.10   Securities Purchase Agreement, dated September 1, 2022, between One World Products, Inc. and Tysadco Partners, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by One World Products, Inc. on September 7, 2022)
10.11   Registration Rights Agreement, dated September 1, 2022, between One World Products, Inc. and Tysadco Partners, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.3 of the Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by One World Products, Inc. on September 7, 2022)
10.12   Convertible Promissory Note Purchase Agreement, dated September 16, 2022, between One World Products, Inc. and Dr. John McCabe (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by One World Products, Inc. on November 14, 2022)
10.13   Convertible Note, dated September 16, 2022, between One World Products, Inc. and Dr. John McCabe (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the Form

10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by One World Products, Inc. on November 14, 2022)
31.1*   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
31.2*   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
32.1*   Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2*   Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INS*   Inline XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH*   Inline XBRL Schema Document
101.CAL*   Inline XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF*   Inline XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB*   Inline XBRL Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE*   Inline XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document
104*   Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)
 
* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.

 
Date: July 5, 2023  
   
  One World Products, Inc.
   
  /s/ Isiah L. Thomas III
  Isiah L. Thomas III
  Chief Executive Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer)
   
  /s/ Timothy Woods
  Timothy Woods
  Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Financial Officer)

 
26



 
Exhibit 4.1

 
NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE
SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF
COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT OR OTHER APPLICABLE
EXEMPTION. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN
ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

 
Principal Amount: US$300,000.00 Issue Date: June 23, 2023 
Purchase Price: US$276,000.00    

 
PROMISSORY NOTE

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC., a Nevada corporation (hereinafter called the “Borrower”) (Trading Symbol: OWPC), hereby

promises to pay to the order of AJB Capital Investments LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, or registered assigns (the “Holder”) the sum of US$300,000.00 (the
“Principal”) together with interest (the “Interest”) on the Principal balance hereof in the amount of twelve percent (12%) (the “Interest Rate”) per calendar year from the date
hereof (the “Issue Date”). Interest shall be payable on a monthly basis beginning on the date that is one month following the Issue Date. All Principal and accrued but unpaid
Interest owing hereunder, along with any and all other amounts, shall be due and owing on March 23, 2024, unless extended as provided herein or accelerated in accordance
with the terms hereof (the “Maturity Date”). This Note may be prepaid in whole or in part as set forth herein without penalty. Any amount of Principal or Interest on this Note
which is not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of the lesser of (i) eighteen percent (18%) per annum and (ii) the maximum amount permitted under law from the due
date thereof until the same is paid (the “Default Interest”). Default Interest shall commence accruing upon an Event of Default and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year and the actual number of days elapsed. All payments due hereunder (to the extent not converted into common stock, $0.001 par value per share, of the Borrower (the
“Common Stock”) in accordance with the terms hereof) shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America. All payments shall be made at such address as the
Holder shall hereafter give to the Borrower by written notice made in accordance with the provisions of this Note. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of
this Note is due on any day which is not a business day, the same shall instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day and, in the case of any interest
payment date which is not the date on which this Note is paid in full, the extension of the due date thereof shall not be taken into account for purposes of determining the
amount of interest due on such date. As used in this Note, the term “business day” shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which commercial banks in the
city of New York, New York are authorized or required by law or executive order to remain closed. Each capitalized term used herein, and not otherwise defined, shall have the
meaning ascribed thereto in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement dated the date hereof, pursuant to which this Note was originally issued (the “Purchase Agreement”).

 
 



 
 

This Note carries an original issue discount of $24,000 (the “OID”), to cover the Holder’s monitoring costs associated with the purchase and sale of the Note, which is
included in the principal balance of this Note. Thus, the purchase price of this Note shall be $276,000 computed as follows: the Principal Amount minus the OID (the “Purchase
Price”).
 

This Note is free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of
shareholders of the Borrower and will not impose personal liability upon the holder thereof.

 
The following terms shall also apply to this Note:
 

ARTICLE I. CONVERSION RIGHTS UPON EVENT OF DEFAULT
 
1.1 Conversion Right. The Holder shall have the right, from time to time following an Event of Default, and ending on the date of payment of the Default

Amount (as defined in Article III) pursuant to Section 1.6(a) or Article III (the “Conversion Period”), each in respect of the remaining outstanding principal amount of this Note
to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid principal, interest, penalties, and all other amounts under this Note into fully paid and non-assessable shares of Common
Stock, as such Common Stock exists on the Issue Date, or any shares of capital stock or other securities of the Borrower into which such Common Stock shall hereafter be
changed or reclassified at the Conversion Price (as defined below) determined as provided herein (a “Conversion”); provided, however, that in no event shall the Holder be
entitled to convert any portion of this Note in excess of that portion of this Note upon conversion of which the sum of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially
owned by the Holder and its affiliates (other than shares of Common Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of the unconverted portion of the
Notes or the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other security of the Borrower subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitations contained
herein) and (2) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the portion of this Note with respect to which the determination of this proviso is being
made, would result in beneficial ownership by the Holder and its affiliates of more than 9.99% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. For purposes of the proviso to the
immediately preceding sentence, beneficial ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and Regulations 13D-G thereunder, except as otherwise provided in clause (1) of such proviso. The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon
each conversion of this Note shall be determined by dividing the Conversion Amount (as defined below) by the applicable Conversion Price then in effect on the date specified
in the notice of conversion, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Notice of Conversion”), delivered to the Borrower or Borrower’s transfer agent by the Holder in
accordance with Section 1.4 below; provided that the Notice of Conversion is submitted by facsimile or e-mail (or by other means resulting in, or reasonably expected to result
in, notice) to the Borrower or Borrower’s transfer agent before 11:59 p.m., New York, New York time on such conversion date (the “Conversion Date”). The term “Conversion
Amount” means, with respect to any conversion of this Note, the sum of (1) the principal amount of this Note to be converted in such conversion plus (2) at the Holder’s option,
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on such principal amount at the interest rates provided in this Note to the Conversion Date, provided however, that the Borrower shall have
the right to pay any or all interest in cash plus (3) at the Holder’s option, Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in the immediately preceding clauses (1) and/or (2)
plus (4) at the Holder’s option, any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof.
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1.2 Conversion Price.
 

(a) Calculation of Conversion Price. Subject to the adjustments described herein, the conversion price (as adjusted, the “Conversion Price”) shall
equal the ten (10) day VWAP prices of the trailing twenty (20) days prior to (i) the date of issuance of the Note or (ii) the date of conversion of the Note. To the extent the
Conversion Price of the Borrower’s Common Stock closes below the par value per share, the Borrower will take all steps necessary to solicit the consent of the stockholders to
reduce the par value to the lowest value possible under law. The Borrower agrees to honor all conversions submitted pending this adjustment. If the shares of the Borrower’s
Common Stock have not been delivered within three (3) business days to the Borrower or Borrower’s transfer agent, the Notice of Conversion may be rescinded. At any time
after the Closing Date, if in the case that the Borrower’s Common Stock is not deliverable by DWAC (including if the Borrower’s transfer agent has a policy prohibiting or
limiting delivery of shares of the Borrower’s Common Stock specified in a Notice of Conversion), an additional 10% discount will apply for all future conversions under all
Notes until DWAC delivery becomes available. If in the case that the Borrower’s Common Stock is “chilled” for deposit into the DTC system and only eligible for clearing
deposit, a 15% discount shall apply for all future conversions under all Note until such chill is lifted. Additionally, if the Borrower ceases to be a reporting company pursuant to
the 1934 Act or if the Note cannot be converted into free trading shares after one hundred eighty-one (181) days from the Issue Date (other than as a result of the Holder’s status
as an affiliate of the Company), an additional 15% discount will be attributed to the Conversion Price. “VWAP” shall mean the daily dollar volume-weighted average sale price
for the Common Stock on the Trading Market on any particular Trading Day during the period beginning at 9:30 a.m., New York City Time (or such other time as the Trading
Market publicly announces is the official open of trading), and ending at 4:00 p.m., New York City Time (or such other time as the Trading Market publicly announces is the
official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg through its “Volume at Price”, or, if no dollar volume-weighted average price is reported for such security by Bloomberg for
such hours, the average of the highest closing bid price and the lowest closing ask price of any of the market makers for such security as reported in the Trading Market. If the
VWAP cannot be calculated for such security on such date on any of the foregoing bases, the VWAP of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as mutually
determined by the Borrower and the Holder. All such determinations of VWAP shall be appropriately and equitably adjusted in accordance with the provisions set forth herein
for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination or other similar transaction occurring during any period used to determine the Market Price (or other period utilizing
VWAPs). “Trading Day” shall mean any day on which the Common Stock is tradable for any period on the Trading Market. “Trading Market” shall mean the OTCQB or on
any other principal securities exchange or other securities market on which the Common Stock is then being traded. The Borrower shall be responsible for the fees of its
transfer agent and all DTC fees associated with any such issuance. Holder shall be entitled to deduct $500.00 from the conversion amount in each Notice of Conversion to
cover Holder’s deposit fees associated with each Notice of Conversion.
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While this Note is outstanding, each time any 3rd party has the right to convert monies owed to that 3rd party (or receive shares pursuant to a settlement or otherwise),

including but not limited to under Section 3(a)(9) and Section 3(a)(10), at a discount to market greater than the Conversion Price in effect at that time (prior to all other
applicable adjustments in the Note), but excluding any 3rd party loans that are already outstanding on the Issue Date, then the Holder, in Holder’s sole discretion, may utilize
such greater discount percentage (prior to all applicable adjustments in this Note) until this Note is no longer outstanding. While this Note is outstanding, each time any 3rd

party has a look back period greater than the look back period in effect under the Note at that time, including but not limited to under Section 3(a)(9) and Section 3(a)(10),
excluding any 3rd party loans that are already outstanding on the Issue Date, then the Holder, in Holder’s sole discretion, may utilize such greater number of look back days
until this Note is no longer outstanding. The Borrower shall give written notice to the Holder within one (1) business day of becoming aware of any event that could permit the
Holder to make any adjustment described in the two immediately preceding sentences

 
(b) Conversion Price During Major Announcements. Notwithstanding anything contained in Section 1.2(a) to the contrary, in the event the Borrower

(i) makes a public announcement that it intends to consolidate or merge with any other corporation (other than a merger in which the Borrower is the surviving or continuing
corporation and its capital stock is unchanged) or sell or transfer all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower or (ii) any person, group or entity (including the Borrower)
publicly announces a tender offer to purchase 50% or more of the Borrower’s Common Stock (or any other takeover scheme) (the date of the announcement referred to in
clause (i) or (ii) is hereinafter referred to as the “Announcement Date”), then the Conversion Price shall, effective upon the Announcement Date and continuing through the
Adjusted Conversion Price Termination Date (as defined below), be equal to the lower of (x) the Conversion Price which would have been applicable for a Conversion
occurring on the Announcement Date and (y) the Conversion Price that would otherwise be in effect. From and after the Adjusted Conversion Price Termination Date, the
Conversion Price shall be determined as set forth in this Section 1.2(a). For purposes hereof, “Adjusted Conversion Price Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to any
proposed transaction or tender offer (or takeover scheme) for which a public announcement as contemplated by this Section 1.2(b) has been made, the date upon which the
Borrower (in the case of clause (i) above) or the person, group or entity (in the case of clause (ii) above) consummates or publicly announces the termination or abandonment of
the proposed transaction or tender offer (or takeover scheme) which caused this Section 1.2(b) to become operative.

 
(c) Pro Rata Conversion; Disputes. In the event of a dispute as to the number of shares of Common Stock issuable to the Holder in connection with a

conversion of this Note, the Borrower shall issue to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock not in dispute and resolve such dispute in accordance with Section 4.13.
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(d) If at any time the Conversion Price as determined hereunder for any conversion would be less than the par value of the Common Stock, then the
Conversion Price hereunder shall equal such par value for such conversion and the Conversion Amount for such conversion shall be increased to include Additional Principal,
where “Additional Principal” means such additional amount to be added to the Conversion Amount to the extent necessary to cause the number of conversion shares issuable
upon such conversion to equal the same number of conversion shares as would have been issued had the Conversion Price not been subject to the minimum price set forth in
this Section 1.2(d).
 

1.3 Authorized Shares. The Borrower covenants that during the period while any outstanding balance is owing hereunder or any conversion of the Note is
available, the Borrower will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares, free from preemptive rights, to provide for the issuance of
Common Stock upon the full conversion of this Note issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower is required at all times to have authorized and reserved at least
four (4) times the number of shares that is actually issuable upon full conversion of the Note (based on the Conversion Price of the Notes in effect from time to time) (the
“Reserved Amount”). The Reserved Amount shall be increased from time to time in accordance with the Borrower’s obligations pursuant to Section 3(d) of the Purchase
Agreement. The Borrower represents that upon issuance, such shares will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. In addition, if the Borrower shall issue any
securities or make any change to its capital structure which would change the number of shares of Common Stock into which the Notes shall be convertible at the then current
Conversion Price, the Borrower shall at the same time make proper provision so that thereafter there shall be a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock authorized and
reserved, free from preemptive rights, for conversion of the outstanding Notes. The Borrower (i) acknowledges that it has irrevocably instructed its transfer agent to issue
certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note, and (ii) agrees that its issuance of this Note shall constitute full authority to its officers and agents
who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary certificates for shares of Common Stock in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Note. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Reserved Amount be lower than the initial Reserved Amount, regardless of any prior conversions.

 
If, at any time the Borrower does not maintain or replenish the Reserved Amount as required hereunder within three (3) business days of the request of the

Holder, the principal amount of the Note shall increase by Five Thousand and No/100 United States Dollars ($5,000) (under Holder’s and Borrower’s expectation that any
principal amount increase will tack back to the Issue Date) per occurrence.

 
1.4 Method of Conversion.
 

(a) Mechanics of Conversion. Subject to Section 1.1, this Note may be converted by the Holder in whole or in part at any time from time to time
during the Conversion Period, by (A) submitting to the Borrower or Borrower’s transfer agent a Notice of Conversion (by facsimile, e-mail or other reasonable means of
communication dispatched on the Conversion Date prior to 11:59 p.m., New York, New York time) and (B) subject to Section 1.4(b), surrendering this Note at the principal
office of the Borrower.
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(b) Surrender of Note Upon Conversion. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, upon conversion of this Note in accordance with
the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Note to the Borrower unless the entire unpaid principal amount of this Note is so converted. The
Holder and the Borrower shall maintain records showing the principal amount so converted and the dates of such conversions or shall use such other method, reasonably
satisfactory to the Holder and the Borrower, so as not to require physical surrender of this Note upon each such conversion. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, such
records of the Borrower shall, prima facie, be controlling and determinative in the absence of manifest error. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any portion of this Note is
converted as aforesaid, the Holder may not transfer this Note unless the Holder first physically surrenders this Note to the Borrower, whereupon the Borrower will forthwith
issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Note of like tenor, registered as the Holder (upon payment by the Holder of any applicable transfer taxes) may request,
representing in the aggregate the remaining unpaid principal amount of this Note. The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of this Note, acknowledge and agree that, by
reason of the provisions of this paragraph, following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note represented by this Note
may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.

 
(c) Payment of Taxes. The Borrower shall not be required to pay any tax which may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issue and

delivery of shares of Common Stock or other securities or property on conversion of this Note in a name other than that of the Holder (or in street name), and the Borrower
shall not be required to issue or deliver any such shares or other securities or property unless and until the person or persons (other than the Holder or the custodian in whose
street name such shares are to be held for the Holder’s account) requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Borrower the amount of any such tax or shall have
established to the satisfaction of the Borrower that such tax has been paid.

 
(d) Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion. Upon receipt by the Borrower from the Holder of a facsimile transmission or e-mail (or other

reasonable means of communication) of a Notice of Conversion meeting the requirements for conversion as provided in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall issue and deliver or
cause to be issued and delivered to or upon the order of the Holder certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion within three (3) business days after such
receipt (the “Deadline”) (and, solely in the case of conversion of the entire unpaid principal amount hereof, surrender of this Note) in accordance with the terms hereof and the
Purchase Agreement.

 
(e) Obligation of Borrower to Deliver Common Stock. Upon receipt by the Borrower of a Notice of Conversion, the Holder shall be deemed to be

the holder of record of the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion, the outstanding principal amount and the amount of accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall be
reduced to reflect such conversion, and, unless the Borrower defaults on its obligations under this Article I, all rights with respect to the portion of this Note being so converted
shall forthwith terminate except the right to receive the Common Stock or other securities, cash or other assets, as herein provided, on such conversion. If the Holder shall have
given a Notice of Conversion as provided herein, the Borrower’s obligation to issue and deliver the certificates for Common Stock shall be absolute and unconditional,
irrespective of the absence of any action by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision thereof, the recovery of any judgment against
any person or any action to enforce the same, any failure or delay in the enforcement of any other obligation of the Borrower to the holder of record, or any setoff,
counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by the Holder of any obligation to the Borrower, and irrespective of any other
circumstance which might otherwise limit such obligation of the Borrower to the Holder in connection with such conversion. The Conversion Date specified in the Notice of
Conversion shall be the Conversion Date so long as the Notice of Conversion is received by the Borrower before 11:59 p.m., New York, New York time, on such date.
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(f) Delivery of Common Stock by Electronic Transfer. In lieu of delivering physical certificates representing the Common Stock issuable upon
conversion, provided the Borrower is participating in the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer (“FAST”) program, upon request of the
Holder and its compliance with the provisions contained in Section 1.1 and in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall use its commercially reasonable best efforts to cause its
transfer agent to electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the Holder by crediting the account of Holder’s Prime Broker with DTC through its
Deposit Withdrawal At Custodian (“DWAC”) system.

 
(g) DTC Eligibility & Market Loss. If the Borrower fails to maintain its status as “DTC Eligible” for any reason, the principal amount of the Note

shall increase by Five Thousand and No/100 United States Dollars ($5,000) (under Holder’s and Borrower’s expectation that any principal amount increase will tack back to the
Issue Date) and the Conversion Price shall be redefined to mean seventy percent (70%) multiplied by the Market Price, subject to adjustment as provided in this Note.

 
(h) Failure to Deliver Common Stock Prior to Delivery Deadline. Without in any way limiting the Holder’s right to pursue other remedies, including

actual damages and/or equitable relief, the parties agree that if delivery of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note is not delivered by the Deadline (other than
a failure due to the circumstances described in Section 1.3 above, which failure shall be governed by such Section) the Borrower shall pay to the Holder $1,000 per day in cash,
for each day beyond the Deadline that the Borrower fails to deliver such Common Stock until the Borrower issues and delivers a certificate to the Holder or credit the Holder’s
balance account with OTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon such Holder’s conversion of any Conversion Amount (under
Holder’s and Borrower’s expectation that any damages will tack back to the Issue Date). Such cash amount shall be paid to Holder by the fifth day of the month following the
month in which it has accrued or, at the option of the Holder (by written notice to the Borrower by the first day of the month following the month in which it has accrued), shall
be added to the principal amount of this Note, in which event interest shall accrue thereon in accordance with the terms of this Note and such additional principal amount shall
be convertible into Common Stock in accordance with the terms of this Note. The Borrower agrees that the right to convert is a valuable right to the Holder. The damages
resulting from a failure, attempt to frustrate, or interference with such conversion right are difficult if not impossible to qualify. Accordingly, the parties acknowledge that the
liquidated damages provisions contained in this Section 1.4(h) are justified.
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(i) Rescindment of a Notice of Conversion. If (i) the Borrower fails to respond to Holder within one (1) business day from the Conversion Date
confirming the details of Notice of Conversion, (ii) the Borrower fails to provide any of the shares of the Borrower’s Common Stock requested in the Notice of Conversion
within three (3) business days from the date of receipt of the Note of Conversion, (iii) the Holder is unable to procure a legal opinion required to have the shares of the
Borrower’s Common Stock issued unrestricted and/or deposited to sell for any reason related to the Borrower’s standing, (iv) the Holder is unable to deposit the shares of the
Borrower’s Common Stock requested in the Notice of Conversion for any reason related to the Borrower’s standing, (v) at any time after a missed Deadline, at the Holder’s
sole discretion, or (vi) if OTC Markets changes the Borrower’s designation to ‘Limited Information’ (Yield), ‘No Information’ (Stop Sign), ‘Caveat Emptor’ (Skull &
Crossbones), ‘OTC’, ‘Other OTC’ or ‘Grey Market’ (Exclamation Mark Sign) or other trading restriction on the day of or any day after the Conversion Date, the Holder
maintains the option and sole discretion to rescind the Notice of Conversion (“Rescindment”) with a “Notice of Rescindment.”

 
1.5 Concerning the Shares. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note may not be sold or transferred unless (i) such shares are sold

pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Act or (ii) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have been furnished with an opinion of counsel (which opinion shall
be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that the shares to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred
pursuant to an exemption from such registration or (iii) such shares are sold or transferred pursuant to Rule 144 under the Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”) or other
applicable exemption or (iv) such shares are transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144) of the Holder who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the shares only in
accordance with this Section 1.5 and who is an Accredited Investor (as defined in the Purchase Agreement). Except as otherwise provided in the Purchase Agreement (and
subject to the removal provisions set forth below), until such time as the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note have been registered under the Act or
otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be
immediately sold, each certificate for shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note that has not been so included in an effective registration statement or that
has not been sold pursuant to an effective registration statement or an exemption that permits removal of the legend, shall bear a legend substantially in the following form, as
appropriate:

 
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO
WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE
HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS
SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT OR OTHER APPLICABLE EXEMPTION. NOTWITHSTANDING THE
FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”

 
  8  



 
 
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Borrower shall issue to the Holder a new certificate therefore free of any transfer legend if (i) the

Borrower or its transfer agent shall have received an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the
effect that a public sale or transfer of such Common Stock may be made without registration under the Act, which opinion shall be reasonably accepted by the Borrower so that
the sale or transfer is effected or (ii) in the case of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note, such security is registered for sale by the Holder under an effective
registration statement filed under the Act or otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption without any restriction as to the number of securities as
of a particular date that can then be immediately sold. In the event that the Borrower does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Holder with respect to the transfer
of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, at the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of
the Note

 
1.6 Effect of Certain Events.
 

(a) Effect of Merger, Consolidation, Etc. At the option of the Holder, the sale, conveyance or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Borrower, the effectuation by the Borrower of a transaction or series of related transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power of the Borrower is disposed of, or the
consolidation, reverse split, forward spilt, merger or other business combination of the Borrower with or into any other Person (as defined below) or Persons when the
Borrower is not the survivor shall either: (i) be deemed to be an Event of Default (as defined in Article III) pursuant to which the Borrower shall be required to pay to the
Holder upon the consummation of and as a condition to such transaction an amount equal to the Default Amount (as defined in Article III) or (ii) be treated pursuant to Section
1.6(b) hereof. “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust or other entity or organization.

 
(b) Adjustment Due to Merger, Consolidation, Etc. If, at any time when this Note is issued and outstanding and prior to conversion of all of the

Notes, there shall be any merger, consolidation, exchange of shares, recapitalization, reorganization, or other similar event, as a result of which shares of Common Stock of the
Borrower shall be changed into the same or a different number of shares of another class or classes of stock or securities of the Borrower or another entity, or in case of any sale
or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower other than in connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Borrower, then the Holder of this Note
shall thereafter have the right to receive upon conversion of this Note, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified herein and in lieu of the shares of Common
Stock immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such stock, securities or assets which the Holder would have been entitled to receive in such transaction had this Note
been converted in full immediately prior to such transaction (without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein), and in any such case appropriate provisions shall
be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holder of this Note to the end that the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustment of the
Conversion Price and of the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as may be practicable in relation to any securities
or assets thereafter deliverable upon the conversion hereof. The Borrower shall not affect any transaction described in this Section 1.6(b) unless (a) it first gives, to the extent
practicable, fifteen (15) days prior written notice (but in any event at least ten (10) days prior written notice) of the record date of the special meeting of shareholders to
approve, or if there is no such record date, the consummation of, such merger, consolidation, exchange of shares, recapitalization, reorganization or other similar event or sale
of assets (during which time the Holder shall be entitled to convert this Note) and (b) the resulting successor or acquiring entity (if not the Borrower) assumes by written
instrument the obligations of this Section 1.6(b). The above provisions shall similarly apply to successive consolidations, mergers, sales, transfers or share exchanges.
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(c) Adjustment Due to Distribution. If the Borrower shall declare or make any distribution of its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of
Common Stock as a dividend, stock repurchase, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including any dividend or distribution to the Borrower’s shareholders in cash or shares
(or rights to acquire shares) of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e., a spin-off)) (a “Distribution”), then the Holder of this Note shall be entitled, upon any conversion of this Note
after the date of record for determining shareholders entitled to such Distribution, to receive the amount of such assets which would have been payable to the Holder with
respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion had such Holder been the holder of such shares of Common Stock on the record date for the
determination of shareholders entitled to such Distribution.

 
(d) Adjustment Due to Dilutive Issuance. If, at any time when any Notes are issued and outstanding, the Borrower issues or sells, or in accordance

with this Section 1.6(d) hereof is deemed to have issued or sold, except for shares of Common Stock issued in an Exempt Issuance (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) and
any shares issued under conversion or exercise of 3rd party securities that are already outstanding on the Issue Date, any shares of Common Stock for a consideration per share
(before deduction of reasonable expenses or commissions or underwriting discounts or allowances in connection therewith) less than the Conversion Price in effect on the date
of such issuance (or deemed issuance) of such shares of Common Stock (a “Dilutive Issuance”), then immediately upon the Dilutive Issuance, the Conversion Price will be
reduced to the amount of the consideration per share received by the Borrower in such Dilutive Issuance.

 
The Borrower shall be deemed to have issued or sold shares of Common Stock if the Borrower in any manner issues or grants any warrants, rights or

options (not including employee stock option plans), whether or not immediately exercisable, to subscribe for or to purchase Common Stock or other securities convertible into
or exchangeable for Common Stock (“Convertible Securities”) (such warrants, rights and options to purchase Common Stock or Convertible Securities are hereinafter referred
to as “Options”) and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Options is less than the Conversion Price then in effect, then the
Conversion Price shall be equal to such price per share. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the “price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of
such Options” is determined by dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Borrower as consideration for the issuance or granting of all such Options,
plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Borrower upon the exercise of all such Options, plus, in the case of Convertible
Securities issuable upon the exercise of such Options, the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration payable upon the conversion or exchange thereof at the time
such Convertible Securities first become convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such
Options (assuming full conversion of Convertible Securities, if applicable). No further adjustment to the Conversion Price will be made upon the actual issuance of such
Common Stock upon the exercise of such Options or upon the conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities issuable upon exercise of such Options.
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Additionally, the Borrower shall be deemed to have issued or sold shares of Common Stock if the Borrower in any manner issues or sells any

Convertible Securities, whether or not immediately convertible (other than in an Exempt Issuance), and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such
conversion or exchange is less than the Conversion Price then in effect, then the Conversion Price shall be equal to such price per share. For the purposes of the preceding
sentence, the “price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such conversion or exchange” is determined by dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or
receivable by the Borrower as consideration for the issuance or sale of all such Convertible Securities, plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any,
payable to the Borrower upon the conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first become convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities. No further adjustment to the Conversion Price will be made
upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock upon conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities.

 
(e) Purchase Rights. If, at any time when any Notes are issued and outstanding, the Borrower issues any convertible securities or rights to purchase

stock, warrants, securities or other property (the “Purchase Rights”) pro rata to the record holders of any class of Common Stock, then the Holder of this Note will be entitled to
acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which such Holder could have acquired if such Holder had held the number of shares
of Common Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of this Note (without regard to any limitations on conversion contained herein) immediately before the date on which a
record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of Common Stock are to be
determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights.

 
(f) Notice of Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Price as a result of the events described in this

Section 1.6, the Borrower, at its expense, shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Holder a certificate setting forth such
adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The Borrower shall, upon the written request at any time of
the Holder, furnish to such Holder a like certificate setting forth (i) such adjustment or readjustment, (ii) the Conversion Price at the time in effect and (iii) the number of shares
of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other securities or property which at the time would be received upon conversion of the Note.
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1.7 Status as Shareholder. Upon submission of a Notice of Conversion by a Holder, (i) the shares covered thereby (other than the shares, if any, which cannot
be issued because their issuance would exceed such Holder’s allocated portion of the Reserved Amount or Maximum Share Amount) shall be deemed converted into shares of
Common Stock and (ii) the Holder’s rights as a Holder of such converted portion of this Note shall cease and terminate, excepting only the right to receive certificates for such
shares of Common Stock and to any remedies provided herein or otherwise available at law or in equity to such Holder because of a failure by the Borrower to comply with the
terms of this Note. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Holder has not received certificates for all shares of Common Stock prior to the tenth (10th) business day after the
expiration of the Deadline with respect to a conversion of any portion of this Note for any reason, then (unless the Holder otherwise elects to retain its status as a holder of
Common Stock by so notifying the Borrower) the Holder shall regain the rights of a Holder of this Note with respect to such unconverted portions of this Note and the
Borrower shall, as soon as practicable, return such unconverted Note to the Holder or, if the Note has not been surrendered, adjust its records to reflect that such portion of this
Note has not been converted. In all cases, the Holder shall retain all of its rights and remedies (including, without limitation, (i) the right to receive Conversion Default
Payments pursuant to Section 1.3 to the extent required thereby for such Conversion Default and any subsequent Conversion Default and (ii) the right to have the Conversion
Price with respect to subsequent conversions determined in accordance with Section 1.3) for the Borrower’s failure to convert this Note.

 
1.8 Prepayment. The Borrower may at any time pay or prepay all or any portion of the amounts outstanding hereunder by making a payment to the Holder of

an amount in cash equal to the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note
plus (y) Default Interest, if any.

ARTICLE II. CERTAIN COVENANTS
 
2.1 Distributions on Capital Stock. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower shall not without the Holder’s written

consent (a) pay, declare or set apart for such payment, any dividend or other distribution (whether in cash, property or other securities) on shares of capital stock other than
dividends on shares of Common Stock solely in the form of additional shares of Common Stock or (b) directly or indirectly or through any subsidiary make any other payment
or distribution in respect of its capital stock except for distributions pursuant to any shareholders’ rights plan which is approved by a majority of the Borrower’s disinterested
directors.

 
2.2 Restriction on Stock Repurchases. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower shall not without the Holder’s written

consent redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire (whether for cash or in exchange for property or other securities or otherwise) in any one transaction or series of related
transactions any shares of capital stock of the Borrower or any warrants, rights or options to purchase or acquire any such shares.
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2.3 Borrowings. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, create,

incur, assume guarantee, endorse, contingently agree to purchase or otherwise become liable upon the obligation of any person, firm, partnership, joint venture or corporation,
except by the endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection, or suffer to exist any liability for borrowed money, except (a) borrowings in existence or
committed on the date hereof and of which the Borrower has informed Holder in writing prior to the date hereof, (b) indebtedness to trade creditors financial institutions or
other lenders incurred in the ordinary course of business, (c) borrowings, the proceeds of which shall be used to repay this Note, (d) borrowings which are expressly
subordinated to this Note, and (e) indebtedness incurred by the Borrower solely for the purposes of immediate material working capital needs. The Borrower shall use the
proceeds from any borrowings or financings following the date hereof to repay this Note and the Borrower’s failure to comply with this covenant shall constitute an Event of
Default hereunder.

 
2.4 Sale of Assets. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, sell, lease

or otherwise dispose of any significant portion of its assets outside the ordinary course of business. Any consent to the disposition of any assets shall be conditioned on a
specified use of the proceeds towards the repayment of this Note.

 
2.5 Advances and Loans. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower shall not, without the Holder’s written consent,

lend money, give credit or make advances to any person, firm, joint venture or corporation, including, without limitation, officers, directors, employees, subsidiaries and
affiliates of the Borrower, except loans, credits or advances (a) in existence or committed on the date hereof and which the Borrower has informed Holder in writing prior to the
date hereof, (b) made in the ordinary course of business or (c) not in excess of $50,000.

 
2.6 Section 3(a)(9) or 3(a)(10) Transaction. So long as this Note is outstanding, the Borrower shall not enter into any transaction or arrangement structured in

accordance with, based upon, or related or pursuant to, in whole or in part, either Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act (a “3(a)(9) Transaction”) or Section 3(a)(10) of the
Securities Act (a “3(a)(10) Transaction”). In the event that the Borrower does enter into, or makes any issuance of Common Stock related to a 3(a)(9) Transaction or a 3(a)(10)
Transaction while this note is outstanding, a liquidated damages charge of 25% of the outstanding principal balance of this Note, but not less than Fifteen Thousand Dollars
$15,000, will be assessed and will become immediately due and payable to the Holder at its election in the form of cash payment or addition to the balance of this Note.

 
2.7 Preservation of Existence, etc. The Borrower shall maintain and preserve, and cause each of its Subsidiaries to maintain and preserve, its existence, rights

and privileges, and become or remain, and cause each of its Subsidiaries (other than dormant Subsidiaries that have no or minimum assets) to become or remain, duly qualified
and in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the character of the properties owned or leased by it or in which the transaction of its business makes such qualification
necessary.

 
  13  



 
 
2.8 Non-circumvention. The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees that the Borrower will not, by amendment of its Certificate or Articles of Incorporation or

Bylaws, or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action,
avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Note, and will at all times in good faith carry out all the provisions of this Note and take all
action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder.

 
ARTICLE III. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

 
If any of the following events of default (each, an “Event of Default”) shall occur:
 
3.1 Failure to Pay Principal or Interest. The Borrower fails to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due on this Note, whether at maturity, upon

acceleration or otherwise and such failure continues for a period of three (3) days.
 
3.2 Conversion and the Shares. The Borrower (i) fails to issue shares of Common Stock to the Holder (or announces or threatens in writing that it will not

honor its obligation to do so) upon exercise by the Holder of the conversion rights of the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Note, (ii) fails to transfer or cause its
transfer agent to transfer (issue) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise
pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, (iii) directs its transfer agent not to transfer or delays, impairs, and/or hinders its transfer agent in transferring (or
issuing) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as
and when required by this Note, (iv) fails to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any
restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion of
or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note (or makes any written announcement, statement or threat that it does not intend to honor the obligations
described in this paragraph) and any such failure shall continue uncured (or any written announcement, statement or threat not to honor its obligations shall not be rescinded in
writing) for three (3) business days after the Holder shall have delivered a Notice of Conversion, (v) fails to remain current in its obligations to its transfer agent, (vi) causes a
conversion of this Note to be delayed, hindered or frustrated due to a balance owed by the Borrower to its transfer agent, (vii) fails to repay Holder, within forty eight (48) hours
of a demand from the Holder, any amount of funds advanced by Holder to Borrower’s transfer agent in order to process a conversion, (viii) fails to reserve sufficient amount of
shares of common stock to satisfy the Reserved Amount at all times, (ix) fails to provide a Rule 144 opinion letter from the Borrower’s legal counsel to the Holder, covering the
Holder’s resale into the public market of the respective conversion shares under this Note, within two (2) business days of the Holder’s submission of a Notice of Conversion to
the Borrower (provided that the Holder must request the opinion from the Borrower at the time that Holder submits the respective Notice of Conversion and the date of the
respective Notice of Conversion must be on or after the date which is six (6) months after the date that the Holder funded the Purchase Price under this Note), and/or (x) an
exemption under Rule 144 is unavailable for the Holder’s deposit into Holder’s brokerage account and resale into the public market of any of the conversion shares under this
Note at any time after the date which is six (6) months after the date that the Holder funded the Purchase Price under this Note (other than as a result of Holder’s status as an
affiliate of the Borrower).
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3.3 Failure to Deliver Transaction Expense Amount. The Borrower fails to deliver the Transaction Expense Amount (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) to

the Holder within three (3) business days of the date such amount is due.
 
3.4 Breach of Covenants. The Borrower breaches any material covenant or other material term or condition contained in this Note and any collateral

documents including but not limited to the Purchase Agreement and such breach continues for a period of five (5) days after written notice thereof to the Borrower from the
Holder.

 
3.5 Breach of Representations and Warranties. Any representation or warranty of the Borrower made herein or in any agreement, statement or certificate

given in writing pursuant hereto or in connection herewith (including, without limitation, the Purchase Agreement), shall be false or misleading in any material respect when
made and the breach of which has (or with the passage of time will have) a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase
Agreement.

 
3.6 Receiver or Trustee. The Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or commence proceedings for

its dissolution, or apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver or trustee for it or for a substantial part of its property or business, or such a receiver or trustee shall
otherwise be appointed for the Borrower or for a substantial part of its property or business without its consent and shall not be discharged within fifteen (15) days after such
appointment.

 
3.7 Judgments. Any money judgment, writ or similar process shall be entered or filed against the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower or any of its

property or other assets for more than $50,000, and shall remain unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of ten (10) days unless otherwise consented to by the Holder.
 
3.8 Bankruptcy. Bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings, voluntary or involuntary, for relief under any

bankruptcy law or any law for the relief of debtors shall be instituted by or against the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower, or the Borrower admits in writing its
inability to pay its debts generally as they mature, or have filed against it an involuntary petition for bankruptcy relief, all under federal or state laws as applicable or the
Borrower admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they mature, or have filed against it an involuntary petition for bankruptcy relief, all under international,
federal or state laws as applicable.

 
3.9 Delisting of Common Stock. The Borrower shall fail to maintain the listing of the Common Stock on at least one of the OTCQB, Nasdaq Capital Market,

Nasdaq Small Cap Market, New York Stock Exchange, NYSE MKT, or an equivalent replacement exchange.
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3.10 Failure to Comply with the Exchange Act. The Borrower shall fail to comply with the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act (including but not

limited to becoming delinquent in its filings); and/or the Borrower shall cease to be subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.
 
3.11 Liquidation. Any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of Borrower or any substantial portion of its business.
 
3.12 Cessation of Operations. Any cessation of operations by Borrower or Borrower admits it is otherwise generally unable to pay its debts as such debts

become due, provided, however, that any disclosure of the Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not be an admission that the Borrower cannot pay its debts
as they become due.

 
3.13 Maintenance of Assets. The failure by Borrower to maintain any material intellectual property rights, personal, real property or other assets which are

necessary to conduct its business (whether now or in the future), or any disposition or conveyance of any material asset of the Borrower.
 
3.14 Financial Statement Restatement. The restatement of any financial statements filed by the Borrower with the SEC for any date or period from two years

prior to the Issue Date of this Note and until this Note is no longer outstanding, if the result of such restatement would, by comparison to the unrestated financial statement,
have constituted a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement.

 
3.15 Reverse Splits. The Borrower effectuates a reverse split of its Common Stock without twenty (20) days prior written notice to the Holder.
 
3.16 Replacement of Transfer Agent. In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer agent, the Borrower fails to provide, prior to the effective

date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited
to the provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer agent to Borrower and the Borrower.

 
3.17 Cessation of Trading. Any cessation of trading of the Common Stock on at least one of the OTCQB, Nasdaq Capital Market, Nasdaq Small Cap Market,

New York Stock Exchange, NYSE MKT, or an equivalent replacement exchange, and such cessation of trading shall continue for a period of five consecutive (5) Trading Days.
 
3.18 Cross-Default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other Transaction Documents (as defined in the Purchase

Agreement), a breach of or the occurrence of an Event of Default under any of the other Transaction Documents or under loans, credits or advances (a) in existence or
committed on the date hereof and which the Borrower has informed Holder in writing prior to the date hereof; (b) made in the ordinary course of business; or (c) otherwise
permitted under Section 2.5 of this Note, which in any instance is continuing after the expiration of applicable notice, grace or cure periods shall, at the option of the Holder, be
considered an Event of Default under this Note and the other Transaction Documents. In such event, the Holder shall be entitled (but in no event required) to apply all rights
and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note and the other Transaction Documents by reason of a breach, default or Event of Default having occurred under this
Note or any other Transaction Document.
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3.19 Bid Price. The Borrower shall lose the “bid” price for its Common Stock ($0.001 on the “Ask” with zero market makers on the “Bid” per Level 2) and/or

a market (including the OTCQB, OTC Pink or an equivalent replacement exchange).
 
3.20 OTC Market Designation. OTC Markets changes the Borrower’s designation to ‘No Information’ (Stop Sign), ‘Caveat Emptor’ (Skull and Crossbones),

or ‘OTC’, ‘Other OTC’ or ‘Grey Market’ (Exclamation Mark Sign).
 
3.21 Inside Information. Any attempt by the Borrower or its officers, directors, and/or affiliates to transmit, convey, disclose, or any actual transmittal,

conveyance, or disclosure by the Borrower or its officers, directors, and/or affiliates of, material non-public information concerning the Borrower, to the Holder or its
successors and assigns, which is not immediately cured by Borrower’s filing of a Form 8-K pursuant to Regulation FD on that same date.

 
3.22 Unavailability of Rule 144. If, at any time on or after the date which is six (6) months after the Issue Date, the Holder is unable to (i) obtain a standard

“144 legal opinion letter” from an attorney reasonably acceptable to the Holder, the Holder’s brokerage firm (and respective clearing firm), and the Borrower’s transfer agent in
order to facilitate the Holder’s conversion of any portion of the Note into free trading shares of the Borrower’s Common Stock pursuant to Rule 144, and (ii) thereupon deposit
such shares into the Holder’s brokerage account (in each case, other than as a result of Holder’s status as an affiliate of the Borrower).

 
3.23 Delisting or Suspension of Trading of Common Stock. If, at any time on or after the Issue Date, the Borrower’s Common Stock (i) is suspended from

trading, (ii) halted from trading, and/or (iii) fails to be quoted or listed (as applicable) on any tier of the OTC Markets, any tier of the NASDAQ Stock Market, the New York
Stock Exchange, or the NYSE American.

 
3.24 Failure to File Registration Statement. If the Borrower shall fail to file a registration statement as required under Section 4(q) of the Purchase Agreement.
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UPON THE OCCURRENCE OF ANY EVENT OF DEFAULT SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3 OF THIS NOTE, THE NOTE SHALL BECOME IMMEDIATELY AND
AUTOMATICALLY DUE AND PAYABLE WITHOUT DEMAND, PRESENTMENT, OR NOTICE AND THE BORROWER SHALL PAY TO THE HOLDER, IN FULL
SATISFACTION OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO: (A) IN THE EVENT OF AN OCCURRENCE OF ANY EVENT OF DEFAULT
SPECIFIED IN OF SECTION 3.2, 3.9, 3.10, 3.16, 3.17, 3.19, 3.20, 3.22, 3.23 OR 3.24, THE THEN OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS NOTE PLUS (X)
ACCRUED AND UNPAID INTEREST ON THE UNPAID PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS NOTE TO THE DATE OF PAYMENT (THE “MANDATORY PREPAYMENT
DATE”) PLUS (Y) DEFAULT INTEREST, IF ANY, ON THE AMOUNTS REFERRED TO IN CLAUSES (W) AND/OR (X) PLUS (Z) ANY AMOUNTS OWED TO THE
HOLDER PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 1.3 AND 1.4(G) HEREOF, MULTIPLIED BY TWO (2); OR (B) IN THE EVENT OF THE OCCURRENCE OF ANY EVENT OF
DEFAULT SPECIFIED IN ANY OTHER SECTION, THE THEN OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS NOTE PLUS (X) ACCRUED AND UNPAID
INTEREST ON THE UNPAID PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS NOTE TO THE MANDATORY PREPAYMENT DATE, PLUS (Y) DEFAULT INTEREST, IF ANY, ON
THE AMOUNTS REFERRED TO IN CLAUSES (W) AND/OR (X) PLUS (Z) ANY AMOUNTS OWED TO THE HOLDER PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 1.3 AND 1.4(G)
HEREOF (THE THEN OUTSTANDING PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THIS NOTE TO THE DATE OF PAYMENT PLUS THE AMOUNTS REFERRED TO IN CLAUSES
(X), (Y) AND (Z) SHALL COLLECTIVELY BE KNOWN AS THE “DEFAULT SUM”) or (ii) at the option of the Holder, the “parity value” of the Default Sum to be prepaid,
where parity value means (a) the highest number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to such Default Sum in accordance with Article
I, treating the Trading Day immediately preceding the Mandatory Prepayment Date as the “Conversion Date” for purposes of determining the lowest applicable Conversion
Price, unless the Default Event arises as a result of a breach in respect of a specific Conversion Date in which case such Conversion Date shall be the Conversion Date),
multiplied by (b) the highest trading price for the Common Stock during the period beginning on the date of first occurrence of the Event of Default and ending one day prior to
the Mandatory Prepayment Date (the “Default Amount”) and all other amounts payable hereunder shall immediately become due and payable, all without demand, presentment
or notice, all of which hereby are expressly waived, together with all costs, including, without limitation, legal fees and expenses, of collection, and the Holder shall be entitled
to exercise all other rights and remedies available at law or in equity. Further, if a breach of Sections 3.9, 3.10 and/or 3.19 occurs or is continuing after the nine (9) month
anniversary of this Note, then the principal amount of the Note shall increase by Fifteen Thousand and No/100 United States Dollars ($15,000) (under Holder’s and Borrower’s
expectation that any principal amount increase will tack back to the Issue Date) and the Holder shall be entitled to use the lowest trading price during the delinquency period as
a base price for the conversion with the Variable Conversion Price shall be redefined to mean forty percent (40%) multiplied by the Market Price, subject to adjustment as
provided in this Note. For example, if the lowest trading price during the delinquency period is $0.50 per share and the conversion discount is 50%, then the Holder may elect
to convert future conversions at $0.25 per share. If this Note is not paid at Maturity Date, then the outstanding principal due under this Note shall increase by Fifteen Thousand
and No/100 United States Dollars ($15,000).
 
The Holder shall have the right at any time after an Event of Default occurs under this Note to require the Borrower, to immediately issue, in lieu of the Default Amount and/or
Default Sum, the number of shares of Common Stock of the Borrower equal to the Default Amount and/or Default Sum divided by the Conversion Price then in effect, pursuant
to the terms of this Note (including but not limited to any beneficial ownership limitations contained herein). This requirement by the Borrower shall automatically apply upon
the occurrence of an Event of Default without the need for any party to give any notice or take any other action.
 
If the Holder shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, including, without limitation, engaging an attorney, then if the Holder prevails in
such action, the Holder shall be reimbursed by the Borrower for its attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution of
such action or proceeding.
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If the Holder shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, including, without limitation, engaging an attorney, the Holder shall be entitled to
use the lowest trading price during the delinquency period as a base price for the conversion and the Variable Conversion Price shall be redefined to mean forty percent (40%)
multiplied by the Market Price, subject to adjustment as provided in this Note.
 

ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS
 
4.1 Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver. No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall operate as a

waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power or privileges.
All rights and remedies existing hereunder are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise available.

 
4.2 Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless

otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable
air courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, electronic mail, or facsimile, addressed as set forth below or to such other address as
such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a)
upon hand delivery or delivery by electronic mail or facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or number designated
below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other
than on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier
service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:

 
  If to the Borrower, to:
     
    One World Products, Inc.
    6605 Grand Montecito Pkwy., Suite 100
    Las Vegas, NV 89149
    Attn: CEO
    E-mail:
     
  If to the Holder:
     
    AJB Capital Investments LLC
    4700 Sheridan Street, Suite J
    Hollywood, FL 33021
    Attn: Ari Blaine
    Email: ari@ajbcapitalinvestments.com
 
  19  



 
 

4.3 Amendments. This Note and any provision hereof may only be amended by an instrument in writing signed by the Borrower and the Holder. The term
“Note” and all reference thereto, as used throughout this instrument, shall mean this instrument (and the other Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) as originally
executed, or if later amended or supplemented, then as so amended or supplemented.

 
4.4 Assignability. This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns, and shall inure to be the benefit of the Holder and its

successors and assigns. Neither the Borrower nor the Holder shall assign this Note or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Holder may assign its rights hereunder to any “accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501(a) of the 1933 Act) in a private transaction from
the Holder or to any of its “affiliates”, as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Borrower. Notwithstanding anything in this Note to the contrary,
this Note may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement. The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of this Note,
acknowledge and agree that following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note represented by this Note may be less than
the amount stated on the face hereof.

 
4.5 Cost of Collection. If default is made in the payment of this Note, the Borrower shall pay the Holder hereof reasonable costs of collection, including

reasonable attorneys’ fees.
 
4.6 Governing Law. This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without regard to principles of conflicts

of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Note shall be brought only in the state courts located in the State
of New York or federal courts located in the State of New York. The parties to this Note hereby irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action
instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens. THE BORROWER HEREBY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE
HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS NOTE OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. The prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Note or any other agreement delivered in
connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict
therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being
served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or
overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and
sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.
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4.7 Certain Amounts. Whenever pursuant to this Note the Borrower is required to pay an amount in excess of the outstanding principal amount (or the portion

thereof required to be paid at that time) plus accrued and unpaid interest plus Default Interest on such interest, the Borrower and the Holder agree that the actual damages to the
Holder from the receipt of cash payment on this Note may be difficult to determine and the amount to be so paid by the Borrower represents stipulated damages and not a
penalty and is intended to compensate the Holder in part for loss of the opportunity to convert this Note and to earn a return from the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired
upon conversion of this Note at a price in excess of the price paid for such shares pursuant to this Note. The Borrower and the Holder hereby agree that such amount of
stipulated damages is not plainly disproportionate to the possible loss to the Holder from the receipt of a cash payment without the opportunity to convert this Note into shares
of Common Stock.

 
4.8 Purchase Agreement. By its acceptance of this Note, each party agrees to be bound by the applicable terms of the Purchase Agreement.
 
4.9 Notice of Corporate Events. Except as otherwise provided below, the Holder of this Note shall have no rights as a Holder of Common Stock unless and

only to the extent that it converts this Note into Common Stock. The Borrower shall provide the Holder with prior notification of any meeting of the Borrower’s shareholders
(and copies of proxy materials and other information sent to shareholders). In the event of any taking by the Borrower of a record of its shareholders for the purpose of
determining shareholders who are entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution, any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire (including by way
of merger, consolidation, reclassification or recapitalization) any share of any class or any other securities or property, or to receive any other right, or for the purpose of
determining shareholders who are entitled to vote in connection with any proposed sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower or any
proposed liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Borrower, the Borrower shall mail a notice to the Holder, at least twenty (20) days prior to the record date specified
therein (or thirty (30) days prior to the consummation of the transaction or event, whichever is earlier), of the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of
such dividend, distribution, right or other event, and a brief statement regarding the amount and character of such dividend, distribution, right or other event to the extent known
at such time. The Borrower shall make a public announcement of any event requiring notification to the Holder hereunder substantially simultaneously with the notification to
the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Section 4.9 including, but not limited to, name changes, recapitalizations, etc. as soon as possible under law.

 
4.10 Usury. If it shall be found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the applicable law governing usury, the applicable

provision shall automatically be revised to equal the maximum rate of interest or other amount deemed interest permitted under applicable law. The Borrower covenants (to the
extent that it may lawfully do so) that it will not seek to claim or take advantage of any law that would prohibit or forgive the Borrower from paying all or a portion of the
principal or interest on this Note.
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4.11 Remedies. The Borrower acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder, by vitiating the intent

and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Borrower acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Note will be
inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Borrower of the provisions of this Note, that the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all other
available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Note
and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions thereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. No
provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Borrower, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, and interest on, this Note at the time,
place, and rate, and in the form, herein prescribed.

 
4.12 Severability. In the event that any provision of this Note is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall

be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which may
prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.

 
4.13 Dispute Resolution. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Conversion Price, Conversion Amount, any prepayment amount or Default

Amount, Default Sum, Closing or Maturity Date, the closing bid price, or fair market value (as the case may be) or the arithmetic calculation of the Conversion Price or the
applicable prepayment amount(s) (as the case may be), the Borrower or the Holder shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile (i) within
two (2) Business Days after receipt of the applicable notice giving rise to such dispute to the Borrower or the Holder or (ii) if no notice gave rise to such dispute, at any time
after the Holder learned of the circumstances giving rise to such dispute. If the Holder and the Borrower are unable to agree upon such determination or calculation within two
(2) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation (as the case may be) being submitted to the Borrower or the Holder, then the Borrower shall, within
two (2) Business Days, submit via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Conversion Price, the closing bid price, or the fair market value (as the case may be) to an
independent, reputable investment bank selected by the Borrower and approved by the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Conversion Price, Conversion
Amount, any prepayment amount or Default Amount, Default Sum to an independent, outside accountant selected by the Holder that is reasonably acceptable to the Borrower.
The Borrower shall cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant to perform the determinations or calculations and notify the Borrower and the Holder of the
results no later than ten (10) Business Days from the time it receives such disputed determinations or calculations. Such investment bank’s or accountant’s determination or
calculation shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.

 
4.14 Reserved.
 
4.15 Registration Statement. As required by Section 4(q) of the Purchase Agreement, the Borrower shall promptly, but in any event no later than 90 days from

the date of this Note, the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC a registration statement covering the resale of all of the Conversion Shares and the Commitment Fee
Shares.

 
[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by its duly authorized officer as of the date first above written.
 

  ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
     
  By: /s/ Isiah Thomas
  Name: Isiah Thomas
  Title: Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF CONVERSION

 
The undersigned hereby elects to convert $_________________principal amount of the Note (defined below) together with $________________ of accrued

and unpaid interest thereto, totaling $_____________ into that number of shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Note (“Common Stock”) as
set forth below, of One World Products, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Borrower”), according to the conditions of the promissory note of the Borrower dated as of June __,
2023 (the “Note”), as of the date written below. No fee will be charged to the Holder for any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any.
 
Box Checked as to applicable instructions:
 
  ☐ The Borrower shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of Conversion to the account of the undersigned or its nominee

with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal At Custodian system (“DWAC Transfer”).
     
    Name of DTC Prime Broker:
    Account Number:
     
  ☐ The undersigned hereby requests that the Borrower issue a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock set forth below (which

numbers are based on the Holder’s calculation attached hereto) in the name(s) specified immediately below or, if additional space is necessary, on an
attachment hereto:

     
    Name: [NAME]
    Address: [ADDRESS]

 
Date of Conversion: _______________

  Applicable Conversion Price: $______________
  Number of Shares of Common Stock to be Issued  
  Pursuant to Conversion of the Notes: _______________
  Amount of Principal Balance Due remaining  
  Under the Note after this conversion: _______________
  Accrued and unpaid interest remaining: _______________

 
  [HOLDER]   
 
  By:    
  Name: [NAME]  
  Title: [TITLE]  
  Date: [DATE]  
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Exhibit 10.5

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of June 23, 2023, by and between ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC., a Nevada
corporation, with headquarters located at 6605 Grand Montecito Pkwy., Suite 100, Las Vegas, NV 89149 (the “Company”), and AJB CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, with its address at 4700 Sheridan Street, Suite J, Hollywood, FL 33021 (the “Buyer”).

 
WHEREAS:

 
A. The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption from securities registration afforded by the rules and

regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); and
 
B. Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement a 12% promissory note of the

Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in the aggregate principal amount of US$300,000.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a
dividend thereon or otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible following an Event of Default into shares of common stock,
$0.001 par value per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”).

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer hereby agree as follows:
 

1. PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE.
 

a. Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and sell to the Buyer the Note and the Buyer shall purchase
the Note from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.

 
b. Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Buyer shall pay the purchase price for the Note in the amount of US$276,000.00

(the “Purchase Price”) by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions, against delivery of the
Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price, and the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note and the Commitment Fee Shares (as defined herein) on behalf
of the Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price.

 
c. Closing Date. Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set forth in Section 8 and Section 9 below, the date and time

of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement (the “Closing Date”) shall be 12:00 noon, Eastern Standard Time on the date hereof, or such other mutually
agreed upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date by remote exchange of documents, or at such
location as may be agreed to by the parties.

 
 



 
 

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BUYER. The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:
 

a. Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or
otherwise pursuant to the Note (including, without limitation, such additional shares of Common Stock, if any, as are issuable on account of interest on the Note, as a result of
the events described in Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) of the Note, or in payment of the Standard Liquidated Damages Amount (as defined in Section 2(f) below) pursuant to this
Agreement, such shares of Common Stock being collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares”) and the Commitment Fee Shares (as defined below), for its own
account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or exempted from registration under the 1933 Act;
provided, however, that by making the representations herein, the Buyer does not agree to hold any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the
right to dispose of the Securities at any time in accordance with or pursuant to a registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act. For purposes of this Agreement, the
Note and the transactions contemplated thereby, the Conversion Shares, and the Commitment Fee Shares, shall be referred to as the “Securities.”

 
b. Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited

Investor”).
 

c. Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered and sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the
registration requirements of United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to determine the availability of such exemptions and the
eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities.

 
d. Information. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remains outstanding will continue to be, furnished with all

materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which have been reasonably requested by
the Buyer or its advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remains outstanding will continue to be, afforded the opportunity to ask
questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic information and will not disclose such
information unless such information is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer. Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence
investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s right to rely on the Company’s representations and warranties
contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that its investment in the Securities involves a significant degree of risk, including the potential loss of its entire
investment. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may constitute a breach of any of the Company’s representations and warranties made herein.
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e. Governmental Review. The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or governmental agency has
passed upon or made any recommendation or endorsement of the Securities.

 
f. Transfer or Re-sale. The Buyer understands that (i) the Securities may not be transferred unless the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective

registration statement under the 1933 Act, the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Company, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption
from such registration, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company, the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144 promulgated under the
1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”)) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities only in accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an
Accredited Investor, the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption, or the Securities are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a
successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Company, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company; (ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule
144 may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any re-sale of such Securities under circumstances in which the
seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that term is defined in the 1933 Act) may require compliance with some other
exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such
Securities under the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each case). Notwithstanding the foregoing
or anything else contained herein to the contrary, the Securities may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement. In the
event that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such
as Rule 144 or Regulation S, within three (3) business days of delivery of the opinion to the Company, the Company shall pay to the Buyer liquidated damages of three percent
(3%) of the outstanding amount of the Note per trading day plus accrued and unpaid interest on the Note, prorated for partial months, in cash or shares at the option of the
Buyer (“Standard Liquidated Damages Amount”). If the Buyer elects to be paid the Standard Liquidated Damages Amount in shares of Common Stock, such shares shall be
issued at the Conversion Price (as defined in the Note) at the time of payment.
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g. Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion Shares, and the Commitment Fee Shares have been

registered under the 1933 Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S or other applicable exemption without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a
particular date that can then be immediately sold, the Conversion Shares and the Commitment Fee Shares may bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and
a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the certificates for such Securities):

 
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE
OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE
FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144
OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT OR OTHER APPLICABLE EXEMPTION. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING,
THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”
 

The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate or book entry statement without such legend to the holder of any Security upon
which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a) such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under
the 1933 Act or otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S or other applicable exemption without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a
particular date that can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of
counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be
accepted by the Company so that the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a certificate(s) or a book entry
statement(s) from which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any.

 
h. Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on

behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms.
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i. Organization. The Buyer is organized in the jurisdiction set forth in the preamble.
 

3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY. The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:
 

a. Organization and Qualification. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined below), if any, is a corporation or other entity duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease,
use and operate its properties and to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is duly
qualified as a foreign corporation or other entity to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in which its ownership or use of property or the nature of the
business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect. “Material
Adverse Effect” means any material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects of the Company or its Subsidiaries, if any, taken as a
whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the agreements or instruments to be entered into in connection herewith. “Subsidiaries” means any corporation or other
organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, any equity or other ownership interest.

 
b. Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note

and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery
of this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the
Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s board
of directors (the “Board of Directors”) and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required, (iii) this Agreement has
been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such authorized representative is the true and official representative with authority to
sign this Agreement and the other documents executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and upon execution and
delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in
accordance with its terms.
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c. Capitalization. As of the date hereof, the authorized capital stock of the Company consists of: (i) Common Stock, 300,000,000 shares authorized
of which 71,702,907 shares are issued and outstanding; and (ii) Preferred Stock, 10,000,000 shares authorized, of which 500,000 shares have been designated as Series A
Preferred Stock, of which approximately 89,733 shares are issued and outstanding, and 300,000 shares have been designated as Series B Preferred Stock, of which
approximately 272,168 shares are issued and outstanding. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to the Company’s stock
option plans, no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to securities (other than the Note and any other promissory note issued to the Buyer) exercisable for, or convertible
into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock and 22,000,000 shares will be reserved for issuance upon conversion of the Note at Closing. All of such outstanding shares of
capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. No shares of capital stock of the Company are subject to preemptive
rights or any other similar rights of the shareholders of the Company or any liens or encumbrances imposed through the actions or failure to act of the Company. Except as
disclosed in the SEC Documents, as of the effective date of this Agreement, (i) there are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip, rights to subscribe for, puts, calls, rights of first
refusal, agreements, understandings, claims or other commitments or rights of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities or rights convertible into or exchangeable for
any shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or arrangements by which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or may become bound to issue
additional shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) there are no agreements or arrangements under which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is
obligated to register the sale of any of its or their securities under the 1933 Act and (iii) there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions contained in any security issued
by the Company (or in any agreement providing rights to security holders) that will be triggered by the issuance of the Note or the Conversion Shares. The Company has filed
in its SEC Documents true and correct copies of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation as in effect on the date hereof (“Certificate of Incorporation”), the Company’s By-
laws, as in effect on the date hereof (the “By-laws”), and the terms of all securities convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock of the Company and the material rights of
the holders thereof in respect thereto.

 
d. Issuance of Note, Conversion Shares and the Commitment Fee Shares. The issuance of the Note is duly authorized and, upon issuance in

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and free from all preemptive or similar rights, taxes, liens, charges and other
encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its
respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability upon the holder thereof. The issuance of the
Commitment Fee Shares is duly authorized and, upon issuance will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and free from all preemptive or similar rights, taxes, liens,
charges and other encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof.

 
e. Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company understands and acknowledges the potentially dilutive effect to the Common Stock upon the issuance

of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. The Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note in
accordance with this Agreement and the Note, is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance may have on the ownership interests of other
shareholders of the Company.
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f. No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Note by the Company and the consummation by the Company
of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including, without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with
or result in a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach of any provision of, or constitute a
default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or
cancellation of, any agreement, indenture, patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of any law,
rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the
Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound
or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a
Material Adverse Effect). Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of its Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws or other organizational documents and
neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default (and no event has occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both could put the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries in default) under, and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has taken any action or failed to take any action that would give to others any rights of
termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any
property or assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected, except (i) for possible defaults as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material
Adverse Effect, and (ii) for defaults of currently outstanding securities instruments. The businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and
shall not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, in violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of any governmental entity. Except as specifically
contemplated by this Agreement and as required under the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws, the Company is not required to obtain any consent, authorization
or order of, or make any filing or registration with, any court, governmental agency, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization or stock market or any third party in order
for it to execute, deliver or perform any of its obligations under this Agreement, the Note in accordance with the terms hereof or thereof or to issue and sell the Note in
accordance with the terms hereof and to issue the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and registrations which the
Company is required to obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or effected on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing
requirements of the OTCQB, and, does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock will be delisted by the OTCQB, in the foreseeable future nor are the Company’s
securities “chilled” by DTC. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.
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g. SEC Documents; Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed
by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) since December 30, 2022 (all of the foregoing
filed prior to the date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to such documents)
incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”), except for the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ending
March 31, 2023. The Company has delivered to the Buyer true and complete copies of the SEC Documents, except for such exhibits and incorporated documents. As of their
respective dates, the SEC Documents complied in all material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder
applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to
state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
None of the statements made in any such SEC Documents is, or has been, required to be amended or updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been
amended or updated in subsequent filings prior the date hereof). As of their respective dates, the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents complied
as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto. Such financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, during the periods involved and fairly present in all
material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and
cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments). Except as set forth in the financial statements of the
Company included in the SEC Documents, the Company has no liabilities, contingent or otherwise, other than (i) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business
subsequent to December 30, 2022, and (ii) obligations under contracts and commitments incurred in the ordinary course of business and not required under generally accepted
accounting principles to be reflected in such financial statements, which, individually or in the aggregate, are not material to the financial condition or operating results of the
Company. The Company is subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. For the avoidance of doubt, filing of the documents required in this Section 3(g) via the SEC’s
Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system (“EDGAR”) shall satisfy all delivery requirements of this Section 3(g).

 
h. Absence of Certain Changes. Since December 30, 2022, there has been no material adverse change and no material adverse development in the

assets, liabilities, business, properties, operations, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
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i. Absence of Litigation. Except as set forth in the SEC Documents, there is no action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by
any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or
affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a Material Adverse Effect. Schedule 3(i) contains a
complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries,
without regard to whether it would have a Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of
the foregoing.

 
j. Patents, Copyrights, etc. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries owns or possesses the requisite licenses or rights to use all patents, patent

applications, patent rights, inventions, know-how, trade secrets, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, service names, trade names and copyrights (“Intellectual
Property”) necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the future). Except as disclosed in the SEC
Documents, there is no claim or action by any person pertaining to, or proceeding pending, or to the Company’s knowledge threatened, which challenges the right of the
Company or of a Subsidiary with respect to any Intellectual Property necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be
operated in the future); to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ current and intended products, services and processes do not infringe on any
Intellectual Property or other rights held by any person; and the Company is unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. The Company
and each of its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and value of their Intellectual Property.

 
k. No Materially Adverse Contracts, Etc. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any charter, corporate or other legal

restriction, or any judgment, decree, order, rule or regulation which in the judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected in the future to have a Material Adverse Effect.
Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any contract or agreement which in the judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

 
l. Tax Status. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has made or filed all federal, state and foreign income and all other tax returns, reports and

declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject (unless and only to the extent that the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has set aside on its books provisions
reasonably adequate for the payment of all unpaid and unreported taxes) and has paid all taxes and other governmental assessments and charges that are material in amount,
shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations, except those being contested in good faith and has set aside on its books provisions reasonably
adequate for the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply. There are no unpaid taxes in any material
amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers of the Company know of no basis for any such claim. The Company has not executed a
waiver with respect to the statute of limitations relating to the assessment or collection of any foreign, federal, state or local tax. None of the Company’s tax returns is presently
being audited by any taxing authority.
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m. Certain Transactions. Except for arm’s length transactions pursuant to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries makes payments in the
ordinary course of business upon terms no less favorable than the Company or any of its Subsidiaries could obtain from third parties and other than the grant of stock options
disclosed on Schedule 3(c), none of the officers, directors, or employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
(other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by, providing
for rental of real or personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any
corporation, partnership, trust or other entity in which any officer, director, or any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner.

 
n. Disclosure. All information relating to or concerning the Company or any of its Subsidiaries set forth in this Agreement is true and correct in all

material respects and the Company has not omitted to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein or therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading. No event or circumstance has occurred or exists with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or its or their business,
properties, prospects, operations or financial conditions, which, under applicable law, rule or regulation, requires public disclosure or announcement by the Company but which
has not been so publicly announced or disclosed (assuming for this purpose that the Company’s reports filed under the 1934 Act are being incorporated into an effective
registration statement filed by the Company under the 1933 Act).

 
o. Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely in the capacity

of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the Buyer is not acting as a
financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and any statement made by
the Buyer or any of its representatives or agents in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is merely
incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely
on the independent evaluation of the Company and its representatives.

 
p. No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made

any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the
Securities to the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s securities (past, current or future) for
purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its securities.

 
10



 
 

q. Brokers. The Company hereby represents and warrants that it has not engaged any broker (“Broker”) in connection with the negotiation, execution
or delivery of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereunder. The Company covenants and agrees that should any claim be made against Purchaser for any
commission or other compensation by the Broker, based upon the Company’s engagement of such person in connection with this transaction, the Company shall indemnify,
defend and hold Purchaser harmless from and against any and all damages, expenses (including attorneys’ fees and disbursements) and liability arising from such claim. The
Company shall pay the commission of the Broker, to the attention of the Broker, pursuant to their separate agreement(s) between the Company and the Broker.

 
r. Permits; Compliance. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is in possession of all franchises, grants, authorizations, licenses, permits,

easements, variances, exemptions, consents, certificates, approvals and orders necessary to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being
conducted (collectively, the “Company Permits”), and there is no action pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened regarding suspension or cancellation of any
of the Company Permits. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in conflict with, or in default or violation of, any of the Company Permits, except for any such
conflicts, defaults or violations which, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Since December 30, 2022, neither
the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notification with respect to possible conflicts, defaults or violations of applicable laws, except for notices relating to
possible conflicts, defaults or violations, which conflicts, defaults or violations would not have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
s. Environmental Matters.

 
(i) There are, to the Company’s knowledge, with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any predecessor of the Company, no

past or present violations of Environmental Laws (as defined below), releases of any material into the environment, actions, activities, circumstances, conditions, events,
incidents, or contractual obligations which may give rise to any common law environmental liability or any liability under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 or similar federal, state, local or foreign laws and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notice with respect
to any of the foregoing, nor is any action pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened in connection with any of the foregoing. The term “Environmental Laws” means
all federal, state, local or foreign laws relating to pollution or protection of human health or the environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water,
groundwater, land surface or subsurface strata), including, without limitation, laws relating to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of chemicals, pollutants
contaminants, or toxic or hazardous substances or wastes (collectively, “Hazardous Materials”) into the environment, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing,
distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials, as well as all authorizations, codes, decrees, demands or demand letters,
injunctions, judgments, licenses, notices or notice letters, orders, permits, plans or regulations issued, entered, promulgated or approved thereunder.
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(ii) Other than those that are or were stored, used or disposed of in compliance with applicable law, no Hazardous Materials are contained
on or about any real property currently owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and no Hazardous Materials were released on or about any real
property previously owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries during the period the property was owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, except in the normal course of the Company’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ business.

 
(iii) There are no underground storage tanks on or under any real property owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries

that are not in compliance with applicable law.
 

t. Title to Property. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, the Company and its Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all
real property and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by them which is material to the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, in each case free and
clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects or such as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Any real property and facilities held under lease by the Company and its
Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with such exceptions as would not have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
u. Internal Accounting Controls. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, the Company and each of its Subsidiaries maintain a system of internal

accounting controls sufficient, in the judgment of the Company’s board of directors, to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are executed in accordance with
management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization and (iv) the
recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.

 
v. Foreign Corrupt Practices. Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor any director, officer, agent, employee or other person acting on

behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary has, in the course of his actions for, or on behalf of, the Company, used any corporate funds for any unlawful contribution, gift,
entertainment or other unlawful expenses relating to political activity; made any direct or indirect unlawful payment to any foreign or domestic government official or
employee from corporate funds; violated or is in violation of any provision of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or made any bribe, rebate, payoff,
influence payment, kickback or other unlawful payment to any foreign or domestic government official or employee.
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w. Solvency. The Company (after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement) is solvent (i.e., its assets have a fair market value
in excess of the amount required to pay its probable liabilities on its existing debts as they become absolute and matured) and currently the Company has no information that
would lead it to reasonably conclude that the Company would not, after giving effect to the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, have the ability to, nor does it intend to
take any action that would impair its ability to, pay its debts from time to time incurred in connection therewith as such debts mature. The Company did not receive a qualified
opinion from its auditors with respect to its most recent fiscal year end other than with respect to its ability to continue as a “going concern” and, after giving effect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, does not anticipate or know of any basis upon which its auditors might issue a qualified opinion in respect of its current fiscal
year (other than with respect to its ability to continue as a “going concern”).

 
x. No Investment Company. The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the Securities as contemplated by this Agreement will not be an

“investment company” required to be registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not controlled by an Investment
Company.

 
y. Insurance. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against such losses and risks

and in such amounts as management of the Company believes to be prudent and customary in the businesses in which the Company and its Subsidiaries are engaged. Neither
the Company nor any such Subsidiary has any reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires or to obtain
similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue its business at a cost that would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Upon written request the Company
will provide to the Buyer true and correct copies of all policies relating to directors’ and officers’ liability coverage, errors and omissions coverage, and commercial general
liability coverage.

 
z. Bad Actor. No officer or director of the Company would be disqualified under Rule 506(d) of the Securities Act as amended on the basis of being a

“bad actor” as that term is established in the September 19, 2013 Small Entity Compliance Guide published by the SEC.
 
aa. Shell Status. The Company represents that it is not a “shell” issuer and that if it previously has been a “shell” issuer, that at least twelve (12)

months have passed since the Company has reported Form 10 type information indicating that it is no longer a “shell” issuer. Further, the Company will instruct its counsel to
either (i) write a 144- 3(a)(9) opinion to allow for salability of the Conversion Shares or (ii) accept such opinion from Holder’s counsel.
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bb. No-Off Balance Sheet Arrangements. There is no transaction, arrangement, or other relationship between the Company or any of its Subsidiaries

and an unconsolidated or other off balance sheet entity that is required to be disclosed by the Company in its 1934 Act filings and is not so disclosed or that otherwise could be
reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

 
cc. Manipulation of Price. The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its behalf has: (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any action

designed to cause or to result, or that could reasonably be expected to cause or result, in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to
facilitate the sale or resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the Securities, or (iii) paid or
agreed to pay to any person any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other securities of the Company.

 
dd. Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Company and each Subsidiary is in material compliance with all applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 that are effective as of the date hereof, and all applicable rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC thereunder that are effective as of the date hereof.
 
ee. Employee Relations. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any collective bargaining agreement or employs any member

of a union. The Company believes that its and its Subsidiaries’ relations with their respective employees are good. No executive officer (as defined in Rule 501(f) promulgated
under the 1933 Act) or other key employee of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has notified the Company or any such Subsidiary that such officer intends to leave the
Company or any such Subsidiary or otherwise terminate such officer’s employment with the Company or any such Subsidiary. To the knowledge of the Company, no
executive officer or other key employee of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is, or is now expected to be, in violation of any material term of any employment contract,
confidentiality, disclosure or proprietary information agreement, non-competition agreement, or any other contract or agreement or any restrictive covenant, and the continued
employment of each such executive officer or other key employee (as the case may be) does not subject the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to any liability with respect to
any of the foregoing matters. The Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations respecting labor, employment
and employment practices and benefits, terms and conditions of employment and wages and hours, except where failure to be in compliance would not, either individually or
in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

 
ff. Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company. The Company agrees that if the Company breaches any of the representations or

warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement and it being considered an Event of Default under
Section 3.5 of the Note, the Company shall pay to the Buyer the Standard Liquidated Damages Amount in cash or in shares of Common Stock at the option of the Company,
until such breach is cured. If the Company elects to pay the Standard Liquidated Damages Amounts in shares of Common Stock, such shares shall be issued at the Conversion
Price at the time of payment.
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gg. Other Issuances. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if the Company, at any time while the Note or any amounts due

hereunder are outstanding, issues, sells or grants any option to purchase, or sells or grants any right to reprice, or otherwise disposes of, or issues (or has sold or issued, as the
case may be, or announces any sale, grant or any option to purchase or other disposition), any Common Stock or other securities convertible into, exercisable for, or otherwise
entitle any person or entity the right to acquire, shares of Common Stock, in each or any case at an effective price per share that is lower than the price per share of the
Commitment Fee Shares (such lower price, the “Base Price” and such issuances, collectively, a “Dilutive Issuance”) (it being agreed that if the holder of the Common Stock or
other securities so issued shall at any time, whether by operation of purchase price adjustments, reset provisions, floating conversion, exercise or exchange prices or otherwise,
or due to warrants, options or rights per share which are issued in connection with such issuance, be entitled to receive shares of Common Stock at an effective price per share
that is lower than the Base Price, such issuance shall be deemed to have occurred for less than the Base Price on such date of the Dilutive Issuance), then the price per share of
the Commitment Fee Shares shall be reduced, at the option of the Buyer, to a price equal to the Base Price and the Company shall issue additional shares of common stock to
fulfill any shortfall to the Commitment Fee.

 
4. COVENANTS.
 

a. Best Efforts. The parties shall use their commercially reasonable best efforts to satisfy timely each of the conditions described in Section 8 and 9
of this Agreement.

 
b. Form D; Blue Sky Laws. If requested by Buyer, the Company agrees to file a Form D with respect to the Securities as required under Regulation

D and to provide a copy thereof to the Buyer promptly after such filing. The Company shall, on or before the Closing Date, take such action as the Company shall reasonably
determine is necessary to qualify the Securities for sale to the Buyer at the applicable closing pursuant to this Agreement under applicable securities or “blue sky” laws of the
states of the United States (or to obtain an exemption from such qualification), and shall provide evidence of any such action so taken to the Buyer on or prior to the Closing
Date.

 
c. Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds from the sale of the Note for working capital and, other general corporate purposes, and

shall not, directly or indirectly, use such proceeds for any loan to or investment in any other corporation, partnership, enterprise or other person (except in connection with its
currently existing direct or indirect Subsidiaries).

 
d. Reserved.
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e. Expenses. The Company shall reimburse Buyer for any and all expenses incurred by them in connection with the negotiation, preparation,
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other agreements to be executed in connection herewith (“Documents”), including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys’ and consultants’ fees and expenses, transfer agent fees, fees for stock quotation services, fees relating to any amendments or modifications of the
Documents or any consents or waivers of provisions in the Documents, fees for the preparation of opinions of counsel, escrow fees, and costs of restructuring the transactions
contemplated by the Documents. When possible, the Company must pay these fees directly, including, but not limited to, any and all wire fees, otherwise the Company must
make immediate payment for reimbursement to the Buyer for all fees and expenses immediately upon written notice by the Buyer or the submission of an invoice by the Buyer.
At Closing, the Company’s initial obligation with respect to this transaction is to reimburse the Buyer $6,000 for management expenses and $7,500 for legal expenses.

 
f. Financial Information. The Company agrees to send or make available the following reports to the Buyer until the Buyer transfers, assigns, or sells

all of the Securities: within ten (10) days after the filing with the SEC, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any Current Reports
on Form 8-K; within one (1) day after release, copies of all press releases issued by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; and contemporaneously with the making available
or giving to the shareholders of the Company, copies of any notices or other information the Company makes available or gives to such shareholders. For the avoidance of
doubt, filing the documents required in (i) above via EDGAR or releasing any documents set forth in (ii) above via a recognized wire service shall satisfy the delivery
requirements of this Section 4(f).

 
g. Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon each national securities exchange or automated quotation

system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then listed (subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, shall maintain,
so long as any other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable upon conversion of the Note. The Company
will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the listing/quotation and trading of its Common Stock on the OTCQB (“OTCQB”), OTC Pink Market
(“OTC Pink”) or any equivalent replacement exchange, Nasdaq Capital Market (“Nasdaq”), the Nasdaq SmallCap Market (“Nasdaq SmallCap”), the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”), or the NYSE American, and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other obligations under the bylaws or rules of the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and such exchanges, as applicable. The Company shall promptly provide to the Buyer copies of any material notices it
receives from OTCQB and any other exchanges or quotation systems on which the Common Stock is then listed regarding the continued eligibility of the Common Stock for
listing/quotation on such exchanges and quotation systems. The Company shall pay any and all fees and expenses in connection with satisfying its obligation under this Section
4(g).
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h. Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note, the Company shall maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or

substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event of a merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, where the surviving or
successor entity in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments entered into in connection herewith and (ii) is a
publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on OTCQB, OTC Pink, Nasdaq, NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX.

 
i. No Integration. The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other than the Securities) under circumstances that would require

registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder under the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any other offering of securities by
the Company for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities.

 
j. Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note, the Company shall comply with the reporting requirements

of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act.
 
k. Restriction on Activities. Commencing as of the date first above written, and until the sooner of the twelve (12) month anniversary of the date first

written above or payment of the Note in full, or full conversion of the Note, the Company shall not, directly or indirectly, without the Buyer’s prior written consent, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld: (a) materially change the nature of its business; or (b) sell, divest, acquire, change the structure of any material assets other than in
the ordinary course of business; or (c) solicit any offers for, respond to any unsolicited offers for, or conduct any negotiations with any other person or entity in respect of any
variable rate debt transactions (i.e., transactions where the conversion or exercise price of the security issued by the Company varies based on the market price of the Common
Stock whether a transaction similar to the one contemplated hereby or any other investment).

 
l. Legal Counsel Opinions. Upon the request of the Buyer from time to time, the Company shall be responsible (at its cost) for promptly supplying to

the Company’s transfer agent and the Buyer a customary legal opinion letter of, at the option of Buyer, either (i) Buyer’s counsel or (ii) Company’s counsel (the “Legal Counsel
Opinion”) to the effect that the sale of Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares by the Buyer or its affiliates, successors and assigns is exempt from the registration
requirements of the 1933 Act pursuant to Rule 144 (provided the requirements of Rule 144 are satisfied and provided the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares are
not then registered under the 1933 Act for resale pursuant to an effective registration statement) or other applicable exemption. Should the Company’s legal counsel fail for any
reason to issue the Legal Counsel Opinion, the Buyer may (at the Company’s cost) secure another legal counsel to issue the Legal Counsel Opinion, and the Company will
instruct its transfer agent to accept such opinion.
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m. Par Value. If the closing bid price at any time the Note is outstanding falls below $0.001, the Company shall cause the par value of its Common
Stock to be reduced to $0.0001 or less.

 
n. Breach of Covenants. The Company agrees that if the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this Section 4, and in addition to any

other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of Default under Section 3.4 of the Note, the Company shall pay to the Buyer
the Standard Liquidated Damages Amount in cash or in shares of Common Stock at the option of the Buyer, until such breach is cured, or with respect to Section 4(d) above,
the Company shall pay to the Buyer the Standard Liquidated Damages Amount in cash or shares of Common Stock, at the option of the Buyer, upon each violation of such
provision. If the Company elects to pay the Standard Liquidated Damages Amounts in shares of Common Stock, such shares shall be issued at the Conversion Price at the time
of payment.

 
o. Commitment Fee

 
(i) Commitment Fee Shares. The Company shall pay to Buyer, as a commitment fee, One Hundred Thousand and No/100 United States

Dollars (US$100,000.00) (the “Commitment Fee”), by issuing to Buyer that number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock equal to such amount. It is agreed that
the number of shares of Common Stock issuable to Buyer under this Section 4(o) at Closing shall be 1,666,667 shares at a price per share of $0.06 (the “Commitment
Fee Shares”). The Company shall instruct its transfer agent (the “Transfer Agent”) at Closing to issue at Closing one (1) certificate or book entry statement
representing 1,666,667 Commitment Fee Shares. The Buyer shall never be in possession of an amount of Common Stock greater than 9.99% of the issued and
outstanding Common Stock of the Company provided, however that (i) this ownership restriction described in this Section may be waived by Buyer, in whole or in
part, upon 61 days’ prior written notice, (ii) advise the Company not to issue such shares until such time as Buyer’s ownership is less than 9.99%, or (iii) upon request
by Buyer, the Company shall issue pre-funded warrants providing the Buyer with the same economic benefits as if the shares had been issued to it. In the event any
certificate or book entry representing the Commitment Fee Shares issuable hereunder shall not be delivered to the Buyer within the applicable five (5) Business Day
period, same shall be an immediate default under this Agreement, the Note and any other documents or agreements executed in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereunder (the “Transaction Documents”). The Commitment Fee Shares, when issued, shall be deemed to be validly issued, fully paid, and non-
assessable shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The Commitment Fee Shares shall be deemed fully earned as of the date hereof.
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(ii) Adjustments. It is the intention of the Company and Buyer that the Buyer shall be able to sell (if Buyer so elects, in Buyer’s sole and

absolute discretion) the Commitment Fee Shares, and generate net proceeds (net of all brokerage commissions and other fees or charges payable by Buyer in
connection with the sale thereof) from such sale equal to the Commitment Fee. The Buyer shall use its best efforts to sell the Commitment Fee Shares in the principal
trading market of the Company’s Common Stock or otherwise, at any time in accordance with applicable securities laws. At any time beginning on the date which is
the six (6) month anniversary of the Closing Date and ending on the fifth anniversary of the date hereof (the “Adjustment Period”), the Buyer may deliver to the
Company a reconciliation statement showing the net proceeds actually received by the Buyer from the sale of 100% of the Commitment Fee Shares (the “Sale
Reconciliation”). If, as of the date of the delivery by Buyer of the Sale Reconciliation (the “Sale Reconciliation Date”), the Buyer has not realized net proceeds from
the sale of such Commitment Fee Shares equal to at least the Commitment Fee, as shown on the Sale Reconciliation, then the Company shall, within five (5) business
days, either pay in cash the applicable shortfall amount or immediately take all required action necessary or required in order to cause the issuance of additional shares
of Common Stock (priced at the volume weighted average price over the ten (10) day period preceding the applicable Sale Reconciliation Date) to the Buyer in an
amount sufficient such that, when sold and the net proceeds thereof are added to the net proceeds from the sale of any of the previously issued and sold Commitment
Fee Shares, the Buyer shall have received total net funds equal to the Commitment Fee. If additional shares of Common Stock are issued pursuant to this Section, and
after the sale of such additional issued shares of Common Stock, the Buyer still has not received net proceeds equal to at least the Commitment Fee, then the Company
shall again be required to immediately take all required action necessary or required in order to cause the issuance of additional shares of Common Stock (or the
payment of cash) to the Buyer as contemplated above, and such additional issuances (or cash payments) shall continue until the Buyer has received net proceeds from
the sale of such Common Stock equal to the Commitment Fee. In the event additional Common Stock is required to be issued as outlined above, the Company shall
instruct the Transfer Agent to issue certificates or book entry statements representing such additional shares of Common Stock to the Buyer as promptly as practicable
following the Sale Reconciliation Date, and the Company shall in any event cause the Transfer Agent to deliver such certificates or book entry statements to Buyer
within five (5) Business Days following the Sale Reconciliation Date; provided, that if by the fifth (5th) business day following the Sale Reconciliation Date, the
Buyer has not received such additional shares of Common Stock (or payment in cash), the Buyer may notify the Transfer Agent directly of the Company’s obligation
to deliver such additional shares of Common Stock, and the Transfer Agent shall issue such additional shares of Common Stock from the Reserved Amount without
any further action by the Company. In the event such certificates or book entry statements representing such additional shares of Common Stock issuable hereunder
shall not be delivered to the Buyer within ten (10) business days of the Sale Reconciliation Date, same shall be an immediate default under this Agreement and the
Transaction Documents. Nothing herein contained shall be interpreted to in any way limit the net proceeds from the sale of the Commitment Fee Shares which shall be
generated by the Buyer. The Company’s obligation to pay the Commitment Fee contemplated by this Section through the sale of Commitment Fee Shares, shall be an
obligation hereunder, secured by all Transaction Documents. For the avoidance of doubt, all requirements of Rule 144 shall apply to any resale of any additional shares
of Common Stock issued by the Company pursuant to an adjustment as described above (to the extent Rule 144 is relied upon in connection with such resale),
including, without limitation, holding period requirements. For the purposes of clarity hereunder, the Adjustment Period shall be applicable for any and all
commitment fee shares previously issued to the Purchaser.
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p. SEC Disclosures. The Company agrees to include disclosure of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein, including, without

limitation, the name of the Buyer, in its Annual Report on Form 10-K, its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and any Current Reports on Form 8-K (as applicable).
 

q. Registration Statement. The Company shall promptly following the date hereof and no later than 60 days following the date hereof prepare and
file with the SEC a registration statement covering the resale of all of the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares, which shall be declared effective no later than 180
days from the date of this Agreement (the “Registration Effective Date”). The foregoing registration statement shall be filed on Form S-1 or any successor forms thereto. The
registration statement (and each amendment or supplement thereto, and each request for acceleration of effectiveness thereof) shall be provided to the Buyer and its counsel at
least five (5) Business Days prior to its filing or other submission and the Company shall incorporate all reasonable comments provided by the Buyer or its counsel. Except as
otherwise expressly provided herein, the Company will pay all fees and expenses incident to the performance of or compliance with this Section, including all fees and
expenses associated with effecting the registration of the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares, including all filing and printing fees, the Company’s counsel and
accounting fees and expenses, costs associated with clearing the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares for sale under applicable state securities laws, listing fees, fees
and expenses of one counsel to the Buyer and the Buyer’s reasonable expenses in connection with the registration, but excluding discounts, commissions, fees of underwriters,
selling brokers, dealer managers or similar securities industry professionals with respect to the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares being sold. The Company shall
notify the Buyer by e-mail as promptly as practicable, and in any event, within twenty-four (24) hours, after the registration statement is declared effective and shall
simultaneously provide the Buyer with copies of any related prospectus to be used in connection with the sale or other disposition of the securities covered thereby.
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5. Negative Covenants. The Company shall not, directly or indirectly, issue or sell any Common Stock, or any securities that are convertible into,

exchangeable or exercisable for, or include the right to receive, additional shares of Common Stock, without the prior written consent of the Buyer; provided, however, subject
to the following:
 

a. Participation in Subsequent Financing. The Buyer shall have the first right to purchase the securities offered in any Subsequent Financing
(“Subsequent Financing Securities”) in an amount equal to up to 100% of the Subsequent Financing (the “Participation Maximum”) on substantially the same terms, conditions
and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing (“Subsequent Financing Terms”). Between five and 10 Trading Days prior to the closing of any Subsequent Financing, the
Company shall deliver to Buyer a written notice of its intention to effect a Subsequent Financing (“Pre-Notice”), which Pre-Notice shall request that the Buyer advise the
Company if Buyer wishes to receive and review an additional notice that includes details of such Subsequent Financing as specified below (such additional notice, a
“Subsequent Financing Notice”). Upon the request of Buyer, and only upon a request by Buyer, for a Subsequent Financing Notice, the Company shall promptly, but no later
than one Trading Day after such request, deliver a Subsequent Financing Notice to Buyer. The Subsequent Financing Notice shall: (i) describe in reasonable detail the
Subsequent Financing Securities and Subsequent Financing Terms of the Subsequent Financing, including tenor, security, equity components, fees, the amount of proceeds
intended to be raised thereunder (or minimum and maximum amounts) and the Person or Persons through or with whom such Subsequent Financing is proposed to be effected,
and (ii) include a term sheet or similar document relating to the Subsequent Financing as an attachment. If Buyer wishes to participate in such Subsequent Financing it must
provide written notice to the Company by not later than 5:30 p.m. (New York City time) on the fifth Trading Day after Buyer has received the Pre-Notice (the “Notice
Termination Time”) that it is willing to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the amount of its desired participation (up to the Participation Maximum), and representing and
warranting that Buyer has such funds ready, willing, and available for such investment on the terms and conditions set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice. If the
Company receives no such notice from Buyer as of the Notice Termination Time, Buyer shall be deemed to have notified the Company that it does not elect to participate in the
Subsequent Financing. If by the Notice Termination Time, notification by Buyer of its willingness to participate in the Subsequent Financing is less than the total amount of the
Participation Maximum, then the Company may effect the remaining portion of such Subsequent Financing on the terms and with the Person or Persons set forth in the
Subsequent Financing Notice.

 
b. Most Favored Nation. Buyer, whether or not participating in a particular Subsequent Financing, shall have the right, exercisable at any time prior

to the Notice Termination Time for such Subsequent Financing, to accept Subsequent Financing Securities and the Subsequent Financing Terms of such Subsequent Financing
in lieu of the Securities and the terms of this Agreement (“MFN Right”). If the Company receives such notice from Buyer of the exercise of its MFN Right as of the Notice
Termination Time for such Subsequent Financing, then: (i) effective upon the closing of such Subsequent Financing, the terms of the securities (and, if and to the extent
relevant, the underlying securities) then held by Buyer and this Agreement (collectively, “Present Terms”) shall automatically be amended by (x) substituting the form, mix and
terms of such securities (and, if and to the extent relevant, the underlying securities) with those of the Subsequent Financing Securities and (y) incorporating by reference,
mutatis mutandis, the Subsequent Financing Terms in lieu of the Present Terms; and (ii) thereafter, upon the reasonable request of the Company or Buyer, the parties shall
reasonably cooperate with each other in order to further or better evidence or effect such substitution(s) and amendment(s), and to otherwise carry out the intent and purposes of
this Section, including the physical exchange of securities for Subsequent Financing Securities.
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6. Transaction Expense Amount. Upon Closing, the Company shall pay Buyer’s legal counsel the Buyer’s legal fees incurred in connection herewith (the

“Transaction Expense Amount”) pursuant to Section 4(e). The Transaction Expense Amount shall be offset against the proceeds of the Note and shall be paid to Buyer upon the
execution hereof.

 
7. Transfer Agent Instructions. The Company shall issue irrevocable instructions to its transfer agent to issue certificates, registered in the name of the Buyer

or its nominee, for the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares in such amounts as specified from time to time by the Buyer to the Company upon conversion of the
Note in accordance with the terms thereof (the “Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions”). In the event that the Company proposes to replace its transfer agent, the Company
shall provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement (including but not limited to the provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer agent to
Company and the Company. Prior to registration of the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares and
Commitment Fee Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can
then be immediately sold, all such certificates shall bear the restrictive legend specified in Section 2(g) of this Agreement. The Company warrants that: (i) no instruction other
than the Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions referred to in this Section, and stop transfer instructions to give effect to Section 2(f) hereof (in the case of the Conversion
Shares and Commitment Fee Shares prior to registration of the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares
may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold),
will be given by the Company to its transfer agent and that the Securities shall otherwise be freely transferable on the books and records of the Company as and to the extent
provided in this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer agent not to transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing)
(electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares are to
be issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove (or directs
its transfer agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instructions in
respect thereof) on any certificate for any Conversion Shares issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note or this
Agreement. Nothing in this Section shall affect in any way the Buyer’s obligations and agreement set forth in Section 2(g) hereof to comply with all applicable prospectus
delivery requirements, if any, upon re-sale of the Securities. If the Buyer provides the Company, at the cost of the Company, with (i) an opinion of counsel in form, substance
and scope customary for opinions in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may be made without registration under the 1933 Act
and such sale or transfer is effected or (ii) the Buyer provides reasonable assurances that the Securities can be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption, the
Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of the Conversion Shares and Commitment Fee Shares promptly instruct its transfer agent to issue one or more certificates,
free from restrictive legend, in such name and in such denominations as specified by the Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will
cause irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at
law for a breach of its obligations under this Section may be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Section, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach and requiring immediate transfer, without the
necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
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8. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATIONS TO SELL. The obligation of the Company hereunder to issue and sell the Note to

the Buyer at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions thereto, provided that these conditions are for the
Company’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion:

 
a. The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Company.

 
b. The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b) above.

 
c. The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing

Date as though made at that time (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all
material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing
Date.

 
d. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by

or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits
the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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9. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE BUYER’S OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE. The obligation of the Buyer hereunder to purchase the Note at the

Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the Buyer’s sole benefit and may
be waived by the Buyer at any time in its sole discretion:

 
a. The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Buyer.

 
b. The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer the duly executed Note.

 
c. The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer duly executed copies of the other Transaction Documents.

 
d. The Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions, in form and substance satisfactory to the Buyer, shall have been delivered to and acknowledged in

writing by the Company’s Transfer Agent.
 

e. The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing
Date as though made at such time (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and complied in
all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied with by the Company at or prior to the
Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a certificate or certificates, executed by the chief executive officer of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing
effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited to certificates with respect to the Company’s Certificate of
Incorporation, By-laws and Board of Directors’ resolutions relating to the transactions contemplated hereby.

 
f. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or

in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

 
g. No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company including but not limited to

a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or the failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations.
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h. The Conversion Shares and the Commitment Fee Shares shall have been authorized for quotation on OTCQB, OTC Pink, Nasdaq,
NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX or any similar exchange and trading in the Common Stock on OTCQB, Nasdaq, NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX or any similar
exchange shall not have been suspended by the SEC or OTCQB, OTC Pink, Nasdaq, NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX or similar exchange.

 
i. The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate in a form acceptable to Buyer, dated as of the Closing Date.

 
10. GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS.
 

a. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without regard to
principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Note or any other
agreement, certificate, instrument or document contemplated hereby shall be brought only in the state courts located in the State of New York or in the federal courts located in
the State of New York. The parties to this Agreement hereby irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert
any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens. EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY
HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR UNDER ANY OTHER
TRANSACTION DOCUMENT OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, ANY OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENT OR
ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney’s fees
and costs. In the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or
rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of
law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each
party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any
other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for
notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be
deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.

 
b. Counterparts; Signatures by Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original

but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. This
Agreement, once executed by a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission of a copy of this Agreement bearing the signature of the party so
delivering this Agreement.
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c. Construction; Headings. This Agreement shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Buyer and shall not be construed against
any person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement.

 
d. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such

provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision
hereof which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.

 
e. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement, the Note, and the instruments referenced herein contain the entire understanding of the parties

with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation,
warranty, covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an instrument in writing signed by the
Buyer.

 
f. Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and,

unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by
reputable air courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, email, or facsimile, addressed as set forth below or to such other address as
such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a)
upon hand delivery or delivery by email or facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or number designated below (if
delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a
business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully
prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:

 
If to the Company, to:

 
One World Products, Inc.
6605 Grand Montecito Pkwy., Suite 100, Las Vegas, NV 89149
Attn: CEO
E-mail:
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If to the Buyer:
 
AJB Capital Investments LLC
4700 Sheridan Street, Suite J
Hollywood, FL 33021
Attn: Ari Blaine
Email: ari@ajbcapitalinvestments.com

 
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.
 

g. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the
Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject
to Section 2(f), the Buyer may assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term
is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Company.

 
h. Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective permitted successors and assigns,

and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other person.
 

i. Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the
closing hereunder not withstanding any due diligence investigation conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and
all their officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged breach by the Company of any of its
representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they
are incurred.

 
j. Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute and

deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the
purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

 
k. No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express their mutual

intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party.
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l. Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the
intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement
will be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to
all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of
this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being
required.

 
m. Publicity. The Company, and the Buyer shall have the right to review a reasonable period of time before issuance of any press releases, SEC,

OTCQB (or other applicable trading market) or FINRA filings, or any other public statements with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that the
Company shall be entitled, without the prior approval of the Buyer, to make any press release or SEC, OTCQB (or other applicable trading market) or FINRA filings with
respect to such transactions as is required by applicable law and regulations (although the Buyer shall be consulted by the Company in connection with any such press release
prior to its release and shall be provided with a copy thereof and be given an opportunity to comment thereon).

 
n. Indemnification. In consideration of the Buyer’s execution and delivery of this Agreement and acquiring the Securities hereunder, and in addition

to all of the Company’s other obligations under this Agreement or the Note, the Company shall defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and its stockholders,
partners, members, officers, directors, employees and direct or indirect investors and any of the foregoing persons’ agents or other representatives (including, without limitation,
those retained in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement) (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all actions, causes of action,
suits, claims, losses, costs, penalties, fees, liabilities and damages, and expenses in connection therewith (irrespective of whether any such Indemnitee is a party to the action for
which indemnification hereunder is sought), and including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements (the “Indemnified Liabilities”), incurred by any Indemnitee as a result
of, or arising out of, or relating to (a) any misrepresentation or breach of any representation or warranty made by the Company in this Agreement or the Note or any other
agreement, certificate, instrument or document contemplated hereby or thereby, (b) any breach of any covenant, agreement or obligation of the Company contained in this
Agreement or the Note or any other agreement, certificate, instrument or document contemplated hereby or thereby or (c) any cause of action, suit or claim brought or made
against such Indemnitee by a third party (including for these purposes a derivative action brought on behalf of the Company) and arising out of or resulting from (i) the
execution, delivery, performance or enforcement of this Agreement or the Note or any other agreement, certificate, instrument or document contemplated hereby or thereby, (ii)
any transaction financed or to be financed in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, with the proceeds of the issuance of the Securities, or (iii) the status of the Buyer or holder
of the Securities as an investor in the Company pursuant to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, other than in the case of this clause (c), as result of the gross
negligence, willful misconduct or violation of law by the Buyer or any Indemnitee. To the extent that the foregoing undertaking by the Company may be unenforceable for any
reason, the Company shall make the maximum contribution to the payment and satisfaction of each of the Indemnified Liabilities that is permissible under applicable law.

 
[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.
 
ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.  
     
By: /s/ Isiah Thomas  
Name: Isiah Thomas  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
     
AJB CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC  
     
By: /s/ Ari Blaine  
Name: Ari Blaine  
Title: Partner  
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Exhibit 10.7

 
REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

 
This REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of June 23, 2023, by and between ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC., a Nevada

corporation, with headquarters located at 6605 Grand Montecito Pkwy., Suite 100, Las Vegas, NV 89149 (the “Company”), and AJB CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, with offices at 4700 Sheridan Street, Suite J, Hollywood, FL 33021 (the “Investor”).
 

RECITALS:
 

WHEREAS, the Company and Investor have entered into that certain securities purchase agreement of even date (the “Purchase Agreement”); and
 

WHEREAS, as an inducement to the Investor to execute and deliver the Purchase Agreement, the Company has agreed to provide certain registration rights under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder, or any similar successor statute (collectively, the “1933 Act”), and applicable state securities laws,
with respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to the Purchase Agreement.
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing promises and the mutual covenants contained hereinafter and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Investor hereby agree as follows:
 

SECTION I
DEFINITIONS

 
As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 
“Execution Date” shall have the meaning set forth in the preambles.
 
“Investor” shall have the meaning set forth in the preambles.

 
“Person” means a corporation, a limited liability company, an association, a partnership, an organization, a business, an individual, a governmental or political
subdivision thereof or a governmental agency.

 
“Register,” “Registered,” and “Registration” refer to the Registration effected by preparing and filing one (1) or more Registration Statements in compliance with
the 1933 Act and pursuant to Rule 415 under the 1933 Act or any successor rule providing for offering securities on a continuous basis (“Rule 415”), and the
declaration or ordering of effectiveness of such Registration Statement(s) by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

 
“Registrable Securities” means (i) the shares of Common Stock issued or issuable pursuant to the Purchase Agreement and the Note, and (ii) any shares of capital
stock issued or issuable with respect to such shares of Common Stock, if any, as a result of any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, exchange or similar event
or otherwise, which have not been (x) included in the Registration Statement that has been declared effective by the SEC, or (y) sold under circumstances meeting all
of the applicable conditions of Rule 144 (or any similar provision then in force) under the 1933 Act.
 

 



 
 
“Registration Statement” means the registration statement of the Company filed under the 1933 Act covering the Registrable Securities.

 
“Registered Offering Transaction Documents” shall mean this Agreement, the Purchase Agreement, the Note, and other related documents between the Company
and the Investor as of the date hereof.

 
All capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning ascribed to them as in the Purchase Agreement.

 
SECTION II

REGISTRATION
 

2.1 The Company shall promptly following the date of execution of this Agreement and no later than 180 days from the date hereof, file with the SEC a Registration
Statement or Registration Statements (as is necessary) on Form S-1 (or, if such form is unavailable for such a registration, on such other form as is available for such
registration), covering the resale of all of the Registrable Securities, which Registration Statement(s) shall state that, in accordance with Rule 416 promulgated under the 1933
Act, such Registration Statement also covers such indeterminate number of additional shares of Common Stock as may become issuable upon stock splits, stock dividends or
similar transactions. The Company shall initially register for resale all of the Registrable Securities which would be issuable on the date preceding the filing of the Registration
Statement based on the closing bid price of the Company’s Common Stock on such date and the amount reasonably calculated that represents Common Stock issuable to other
parties as set forth in the Purchase Agreement except to the extent that the SEC requires the share amount to be reduced as a condition of effectiveness.
 

2.2 The Company shall have the Registration Statement(s) declared effective by the SEC within 270 calendar days of the date hereof.
 

2.3 The Company agrees not to include any other securities in the Registration Statement covering the Registrable Securities without Investor’s prior written consent
which Investor may withhold in its sole discretion. Furthermore, the Company agrees that it will not file any other Registration Statement for other securities, until thirty
calendar days after the Registration Statement for the Registrable Securities is declared effective by the SEC.
 

2.4 Notwithstanding the registration obligations set forth in Section 2.1, if the staff of the SEC (the “Staff”) or the SEC informs the Company that all of the
unregistered Registrable Securities cannot, as a result of the application of Rule 415, be registered for resale as a secondary offering on a single Registration Statement, the
Company agrees to promptly (i) inform the Investor and use its commercially reasonable efforts to file amendments to the Registration Statement as required by the SEC and/or
(ii) withdraw the Registration Statement and file a new registration statement (the “New Registration Statement”), in either case covering the maximum number of
Registrable Securities permitted to be registered by the SEC, on Form S-1 to register for resale the Registrable Securities as a secondary offering. If the Company amends the
Registration Statement or files a New Registration Statement, as the case may be, under clauses (i) or (ii) above, the Company will use its commercially reasonable efforts to
file with the SEC, as promptly as allowed by the Staff or SEC, one or more registration statements on Form S-1 to register for resale those Registrable Securities that were not
registered for resale on the Registration Statement, as amended, or the New Registration Statement (each, an “Additional Registration Statement”).

 
 



 
 

SECTION III
RELATED OBLIGATIONS

 
At such time as the Company is obligated to prepare and file the Registration Statement with the SEC pursuant to Section 2.1, the Company will affect the registration

of the Registrable Securities in accordance with the intended method of disposition thereof and, with respect thereto, the Company shall have the following obligations:
 

3.1 The Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause such Registration Statement relating to the Registrable Securities to become effective and shall
keep such Registration Statement effective until the earlier to occur of the date on which (A) the Investor shall have sold all the Registrable Securities; or (B) the Investor has
no right to acquire any additional shares of Common Stock under the Purchase Agreement (the “Registration Period”). The Registration Statement (including any amendments
or supplements thereto and prospectuses contained therein) shall not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein,
or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances in which they were made, not misleading. The Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts
to respond to all SEC comments within ten (10) business days from receipt of such comments by the Company. The Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to
cause the Registration Statement relating to the Registrable Securities to become effective no later than three (3) business days after notice from the SEC that the Registration
Statement may be declared effective. The Investor agrees to provide all information which is required by law to provide to the Company, including the intended method of
disposition of the Registrable Securities, and the Company’s obligations set forth above shall be conditioned on the receipt of such information.
 

3.2 The Company shall prepare and file with the SEC such amendments (including post- effective amendments) and supplements to the Registration Statement and the
prospectus used in connection with such Registration Statement, which prospectus is to be filed pursuant to Rule 424 promulgated under the 1933 Act, as may be necessary to
keep such Registration Statement effective during the Registration Period, and, during such period, comply with the provisions of the 1933 Act with respect to the disposition of
all Registrable Securities of the Company covered by such Registration Statement until such time as all of such Registrable Securities shall have been disposed of in accordance
with the intended methods of disposition by the Investor thereof as set forth in such Registration Statement. In the event the number of shares of Common Stock covered by the
Registration Statement filed pursuant to this Agreement is at any time insufficient to cover all of the Registrable Securities, the Company shall amend such Registration
Statement, or file a new Registration Statement (on the short form available therefor, if applicable), or both, so as to cover all of the Registrable Securities, in each case, as soon
as practicable, but in any event within thirty (30) calendar days after the necessity therefor arises (based on the then Purchase Price of the Common Stock and other relevant
factors on which the Company reasonably elects to rely), assuming the Company has sufficient authorized shares at that time, and if it does not, within thirty (30) calendar days
after such shares are authorized. The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause such amendment and/or new Registration Statement to become effective as
soon as practicable following the filing thereof.
 

3.3 The Company shall make available to the Investor and its legal counsel without charge (i) promptly after the same is prepared and filed with the SEC at least one
(1) copy of such Registration Statement and any amendment(s) thereto, including financial statements and schedules, all documents incorporated therein by reference and all
exhibits, the prospectus included in such Registration Statement (including each preliminary prospectus) and, with regards to such Registration Statement(s), any
correspondence by or on behalf of the Company to the SEC or the staff of the SEC and any correspondence from the SEC or the staff of the SEC to the Company or its
representatives; (ii) upon the effectiveness of any Registration Statement, the Company shall make available copies of the prospectus, via EDGAR, included in such
Registration Statement and all amendments and supplements thereto; and (iii) such other documents, including copies of any preliminary or final prospectus, as the Investor
may reasonably request from time to time to facilitate the disposition of the Registrable Securities.
 
 



 
 

3.4 The Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to (i) register and qualify the Registrable Securities covered by the Registration Statement under such
other securities or “blue sky” laws of such states in the United States as the Investor reasonably requests; (ii) prepare and file in those jurisdictions, such amendments (including
post-effective amendments) and supplements to such registrations and qualifications as may be necessary to maintain the effectiveness thereof during the Registration Period;
(iii) take such other actions as may be necessary to maintain such registrations and qualifications in effect at all times during the Registration Period, and (iv) take all other
actions reasonably necessary or advisable to qualify the Registrable Securities for sale in such jurisdictions; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required in
connection therewith or as a condition thereto to (x) qualify to do business in any jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be required to qualify but for this Section 3.4, or (y)
subject itself to general taxation in any such jurisdiction. The Company shall promptly notify the Investor of the receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the
suspension of the registration or qualification of any of the Registrable Securities for sale under the securities or “blue sky” laws of any jurisdiction in the United States or its
receipt of actual notice of the initiation or threatening of any proceeding for such purpose.
 

3.5 As promptly as practicable after becoming aware of such event, the Company shall notify Investor in writing of the happening of any event as a result of which the
prospectus included in the Registration Statement, as then in effect, includes an untrue statement of a material fact or omission to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (“Registration Default”) and use all diligent
efforts to promptly prepare a supplement or amendment to such Registration Statement and take any other necessary steps to cure the Registration Default (which, if such
Registration Statement is on Form S-3, may consist of a document to be filed by the Company with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the 1934 Act (as
defined below) and to be incorporated by reference in the prospectus) to correct such untrue statement or omission, and make available copies of such supplement or
amendment to the Investor. The Company shall also promptly notify the Investor (i) when a prospectus or any prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment has been
filed, and when the Registration Statement or any post- effective amendment has become effective (the Company will prepare notification of such effectiveness which shall be
delivered to the Investor on the same day of such effectiveness and by overnight mail), additionally, the Company will promptly provide to the Investor, a copy of the
effectiveness order prepared by the SEC once it is received by the Company; (ii) of any request by the SEC for amendments or supplements to the Registration Statement or
related prospectus or related information, (iii) of the Company’s reasonable determination that a post-effective amendment to the Registration Statement would be appropriate,
(iv) in the event the Registration Statement is no longer effective, or (v) if the Registration Statement is stale as a result of the Company’s failure to timely file its financials or
otherwise.
 

3.6 The Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to prevent the issuance of any stop order or other suspension of effectiveness of the Registration
Statement, or the suspension of the qualification of any of the Registrable Securities for sale in any jurisdiction and, if such an order or suspension is issued, to obtain the
withdrawal of such order or suspension at the earliest possible moment and to notify the Investor holding Registrable Securities being sold of the issuance of such order and the
resolution thereof or its receipt of actual notice of the initiation or threat of any proceeding concerning the effectiveness of the registration statement.
 
 



 
 

3.7 The Company shall permit the Investor and one (1) legal counsel, designated by the Investor, to review and comment upon the Registration Statement and all
amendments and supplements thereto at least one (1) calendar day prior to their filing with the SEC. However, any postponement of a filing of a Registration Statement or any
postponement of a request for acceleration or any postponement of the effective date or effectiveness of a Registration Statement by written request of the Investor (collectively,
the “Investor’s Delay”) shall not act to trigger any penalty of any kind, or any cash amount due or any in-kind amount due the Investor from the Company under any and all
agreements of any nature or kind between the Company and the Investor. The event(s) of an Investor’s Delay shall act to suspend all obligations of any kind or nature of the
Company under any and all agreements of any nature or kind between the Company and the Investor.
 

3.8 At the request of the Investor, the Company’s counsel shall furnish to the Investor, within two (2) business days, an opinion letter confirming the effectiveness of
the registration statement. Such opinion letter shall be issued as of the date of the effectiveness of the registration statement, in a form suitable to the Investor.
 

3.9 The Company shall hold in confidence and not make any disclosure of information concerning the Investor unless (i) disclosure of such information is necessary to
comply with federal or state securities laws, (ii) the disclosure of such information is necessary to avoid or correct a misstatement or omission in any Registration Statement, or
(iii) the release of such information is ordered pursuant to a subpoena or other final, non-appealable order from a court or governmental body of competent jurisdiction. The
Company agrees that it shall, upon learning that disclosure of such information concerning the Investor is sought in or by a court or governmental body of competent
jurisdiction or through other means, give prompt written notice to the Investor and allow the Investor, at the Investor’s expense, to undertake appropriate action to prevent
disclosure of, or to obtain a protective order covering such information.
 

3.10 The Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to maintain designation and quotation of all the Registrable Securities covered by any Registration
Statement on the Principal Market. If, despite the Company’s commercially reasonable efforts, the Company is unsuccessful in satisfying the preceding sentence, it shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to cause all the Registrable Securities covered by any Registration Statement to be listed on each other national securities exchange and
automated quotation system, if any, on which securities of the same class or series issued by the Company are then listed, if any, if the listing of such Registrable Securities is
then permitted under the rules of such exchange or system. The Company shall pay all fees and expenses in connection with satisfying its obligation under this Section 3.10.
 

3.11 The Company shall cooperate with the Investor to facilitate the prompt preparation and delivery of the Registrable Securities to be offered pursuant to the
Registration Statement and enable such Registrable Securities to be in such denominations or amounts, as the case may be, as the Investor may reasonably request.
 

3.12 The Company shall provide a transfer agent for all the Registrable Securities not later than the effective date of the first Registration Statement filed pursuant
hereto.
 

3.13 If requested by the Investor, the Company shall (i) as soon as reasonably practical incorporate in a prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment such
information as the Investor reasonably determines should be included therein relating to the sale and distribution of Registrable Securities, including, without limitation,
information with respect to the offering of the Registrable Securities to be sold in such offering; (ii) make all required filings of such prospectus supplement or post- effective
amendment as soon as reasonably possible after being notified of the matters to be incorporated in such prospectus supplement or post-effective amendment; and (iii)
supplement or make amendments to any Registration Statement if reasonably requested by the Investor.

 
 



 
 

3.14 The Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Registrable Securities covered by the applicable Registration Statement to be registered
with or approved by such other governmental agencies or authorities as may be necessary to facilitate the disposition of such Registrable Securities.
 

3.15 The Company shall otherwise use all commercially reasonable efforts to comply with all applicable rules and regulations of the SEC in connection with any
registration hereunder.
 

3.16 Within three (3) business days after the Registration Statement is declared effective by the SEC, the Company shall deliver to the transfer agent for such
Registrable Securities, with copies to the Investor, confirmation that such Registration Statement has been declared effective by the SEC.
 

3.17 The Company shall take all other reasonable actions necessary to expedite and facilitate disposition by the Investor of Registrable Securities pursuant to the
Registration Statement.
 

SECTION IV
OBLIGATIONS OF THE INVESTOR

 
4.1 At least five (5) calendar days prior to the first anticipated filing date of the Registration Statement, the Company shall notify the Investor in writing of the

information the Company requires from the Investor for the Registration Statement. It shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of the Company to complete the
registration pursuant to this Agreement with respect to the Registrable Securities and the Investor agrees to furnish to the Company that information regarding itself, the
Registrable Securities and the intended method of disposition of the Registrable Securities as shall reasonably be required to effect the registration of such Registrable
Securities and the Investor shall execute such documents in connection with such registration as the Company may reasonably request. The Investor covenants and agrees that,
in connection with any sale of Registrable Securities by it pursuant to the Registration Statement, it shall comply with the “Plan of Distribution” section of the then current
prospectus relating to such Registration Statement.
 

4.2 The Investor, by its acceptance of the Registrable Securities, agrees to cooperate with the Company as reasonably requested by the Company in connection with
the preparation and filing of any Registration Statement hereunder, unless the Investor has notified the Company in writing of an election to exclude all of the Investor’s
Registrable Securities from such Registration Statement.
 

4.3 The Investor agrees that, upon receipt of written notice from the Company of the happening of any event of the kind described in Section 3.6 or the first sentence
of 3.5, the Investor will immediately discontinue disposition of Registrable Securities pursuant to any Registration Statement(s) covering such Registrable Securities until the
Investor’s receipt of the copies of the supplemented or amended prospectus contemplated by Section 3.6 or the first sentence of 3.5.

 
SECTION V

EXPENSES OF REGISTRATION
 

All legal expenses, other than underwriting discounts and commissions and other than as set forth in the Purchase Agreement, incurred in connection with registrations
including comments, filings or qualifications pursuant to Sections 2 and 3, including, without limitation, all registration, listing and qualifications fees, and printing fees shall be
paid by the Company.
 
 



 
 

SECTION VI
INDEMNIFICATION

 
In the event any Registrable Securities are included in the Registration Statement under this Agreement:

 
6.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Company, under this Agreement, will, and hereby does, indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Investor who holds

Registrable Securities, the directors, officers, partners, employees, counsel, agents, representatives of, and each Person, if any, who controls, any Investor within the meaning of
the 1933 Act or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (each, an “Indemnified Person”), against any losses, claims, damages, liabilities,
judgments, fines, penalties, charges, costs, attorneys’ fees, amounts paid in settlement or expenses, joint or several (collectively, “Claims”), incurred in investigating, preparing
or defending any action, claim, suit, inquiry, proceeding, investigation or appeal taken from the foregoing by or before any court or governmental, administrative or other
regulatory agency, body or the SEC, whether pending or threatened, whether or not an indemnified party is or may be a party thereto (“Indemnified Damages”), to which any
of them may become subject insofar as such Claims (or actions or proceedings, whether commenced or threatened, in respect thereof) arise out of or are based upon: (i) any
untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact in the Registration Statement or any post-effective amendment thereto or in any filing made in connection with
the qualification of the offering under the securities or other “blue sky” laws of any jurisdiction in which the Investor has requested in writing that the Company register or
qualify the Shares (“Blue Sky Filing”), or the omission or alleged omission to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in
light of the circumstances under which the statements therein were made, not misleading, (ii) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in
the final prospectus (as amended or supplemented, if the Company files any amendment thereof or supplement thereto with the SEC) or the omission or alleged omission to
state therein any material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which the statements therein were made, not misleading, or
(iii) any violation or alleged violation by the Company of the 1933 Act, the 1934 Act, any other law, including, without limitation, any state securities law, or any rule or
regulation thereunder relating to the offer or sale of the Registrable Securities pursuant to the Registration Statement (the matters in the foregoing clauses (i) through (iii) being,
collectively, “Violations”). Subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 6.3 the Company shall reimburse the Investor and each such controlling person, promptly as such
expenses are incurred and are due and payable, for any reasonable legal fees or other reasonable expenses incurred by them in connection with investigating or defending any
such Claim. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the indemnification agreement contained in this Section 6.1: (i) shall not apply to a Claim arising out of
or based upon a Violation which is due to the inclusion in the Registration Statement of the information furnished to the Company by any Indemnified Person expressly for use
in connection with the preparation of the Registration Statement or any such amendment thereof or supplement thereto; (ii) shall not be available to the extent such Claim is
based on (a) a failure of the Investor to deliver or to cause to be delivered the prospectus made available by the Company or (b) the Indemnified Person’s use of an incorrect
prospectus despite being promptly advised in advance by the Company in writing not to use such incorrect prospectus; (iii) any claims based on the manner of sale of the
Registrable Securities by the Investor or of the Investor’s failure to register as a dealer under applicable securities laws; (iv) any omission of the Investor to notify the Company
of any material fact that should be stated in the Registration Statement or prospectus relating to the Investor or the manner of sale; and (v) any amounts paid in settlement of
any Claim if such settlement is effected without the prior written consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Such indemnity shall remain in
full force and effect regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of the Indemnified Person and shall survive the resale of the Registrable Securities by the Investor
pursuant to the Registration Statement.
 
 



 
 

6.2 In connection with any Registration Statement in which Investor is participating, the Investor agrees to severally and jointly indemnify, hold harmless and defend,
to the same extent and in the same manner as is set forth in Section 6.1, the Company, each of its directors, each of its officers who signs the Registration Statement, each
Person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act and the Company’s agents (collectively and together with an Indemnified Person,
an “Indemnified Party”), against any Claim or Indemnified Damages to which any of them may become subject, under the 1933 Act, the 1934 Act or otherwise, insofar as
such Claim or Indemnified Damages arise out of or are based upon any Violation, in each case to the extent, and only to the extent, that such Violation is due to the inclusion in
the Registration Statement of the written information furnished to the Company by the Investor expressly for use in connection with such Registration Statement; and, subject
to Section 6.3, the Investor will reimburse any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by them in connection with investigating or defending any such Claim; provided,
however, that the indemnity agreement contained in this Section 6.2 and the agreement with respect to contribution contained in Section 7 shall not apply to amounts paid in
settlement of any Claim if such settlement is effected without the prior written consent of the Investor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided, further,
however, that the Investor shall only be liable under this Section 6.2 for that amount of a Claim or Indemnified Damages as does not exceed the net proceeds to such Investor as
a result of the sale of Registrable Securities pursuant to such Registration Statement. Such indemnity shall remain in full force and effect regardless of any investigation made
by or on behalf of such Indemnified Party and shall survive the resale of the Registrable Securities by the Investor pursuant to the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained herein, the indemnification agreement contained in this Section 6.2 with respect to any preliminary prospectus shall not inure to the benefit
of any Indemnified Party if the untrue statement or omission of material fact contained in the preliminary prospectus were corrected on a timely basis in the prospectus, as then
amended or supplemented. This indemnification provision shall apply separately to each Investor and liability hereunder shall not be joint and several.
 

6.3 Promptly after receipt by an Indemnified Person or Indemnified Party under this Section 6 of notice of the commencement of any action or proceeding (including
any governmental action or proceeding) involving a Claim, such Indemnified Person or Indemnified Party shall, if a Claim in respect thereof is to be made against any
indemnifying party under this Section 6, deliver to the indemnifying party a written notice of the commencement thereof, and the indemnifying party shall have the right to
participate in, and, to the extent the indemnifying party so desires, jointly with any other indemnifying party similarly noticed, to assume control of the defense thereof with
counsel mutually satisfactory to the indemnifying party and the Indemnified Person or the Indemnified Party, as the case may be; provided, however, that an Indemnified
Person or Indemnified Party shall have the right to retain its own counsel with the fees and expenses to be paid by the indemnifying party, if, in the reasonable opinion of
counsel retained by the Indemnified Person or Indemnified Party, the representation by counsel of the Indemnified Person or Indemnified Party and the indemnifying party
would be inappropriate due to actual or potential differing interests between such Indemnified Person or Indemnified Party and any other party represented by such counsel in
such proceeding. The indemnifying party shall pay for only one (1) separate legal counsel for the Indemnified Persons or the Indemnified Parties, as applicable, and such
counsel shall be selected by the Investor, if the Investor is entitled to indemnification hereunder, or the Company, if the Company is entitled to indemnification hereunder, as
applicable. The Indemnified Party or Indemnified Person shall cooperate fully with the indemnifying party in connection with any negotiation or defense of any such action or
Claim by the indemnifying party and shall furnish to the indemnifying party all information reasonably available to the Indemnified Party or Indemnified Person which relates
to such action or Claim. The indemnifying party shall keep the Indemnified Party or Indemnified Person fully apprised at all times as to the status of the defense or any
settlement negotiations with respect thereto. No indemnifying party shall be liable for any settlement of any action, claim or proceeding affected without its written consent,
provided, however, that the indemnifying party shall not unreasonably withhold, delay or condition its consent. No indemnifying party shall, without the consent of the
Indemnified Party or Indemnified Person, consent to entry of any judgment or enter into any settlement or other compromise which does not include as an unconditional term
thereof the giving by the claimant or plaintiff to such Indemnified Party or Indemnified Person of a release from all liability in respect to such Claim. Following indemnification
as provided for hereunder, the indemnifying party shall be subrogated to all rights of the Indemnified Party or Indemnified Person with respect to all third parties, firms or
corporations relating to the matter for which indemnification has been made. The failure to deliver written notice to the indemnifying party within a reasonable time of the
commencement of any such action shall not relieve such indemnifying party of any liability to the Indemnified Person or Indemnified Party under this Section 6, except to the
extent that the indemnifying party is prejudiced in its ability to defend such action.
 
 



 
 

6.4 The indemnity agreements contained herein shall be in addition to (i) any cause of action or similar right of the Indemnified Party or Indemnified Person against
the indemnifying party or others, and (ii) any liabilities the indemnifying party may be subject to pursuant to the law.
 

SECTION VII
CONTRIBUTION

 
7.1 To the extent any indemnification by an indemnifying party is prohibited or limited by law, the indemnifying party agrees to make the maximum contribution with

respect to any amounts for which it would otherwise be liable under Section 6 to the fullest extent permitted by law; provided, however, that: (i) no contribution shall be made
under circumstances where the maker would not have been liable for indemnification under the fault standards set forth in Section 6; (ii) no seller of Registrable Securities
guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the 1933 Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any seller of Registrable Securities who was
not guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation; and (iii) contribution by any seller of Registrable Securities shall be limited in amount to the net amount of proceeds received by
such seller from the sale of such Registrable Securities.
 

SECTION VIII
REPORTS UNDER THE 1934 ACT

 
8.1 With a view to making available to the Investor the benefits of Rule 144 promulgated under the 1933 Act or any other similar rule or regulation of the SEC that

may at any time permit the Investor to sell securities of the Company to the public without registration (“Rule 144”), provided that the Investor holds any Registrable Securities
are eligible for resale under Rule 144, the Company agrees to:
 

a. make and keep adequate current public information available, as those terms are understood and defined in Rule 144;
 

b. file with the SEC in a timely manner all reports and other documents required of the Company under the 1933 Act and the 1934 Act so long as the Company
remains subject to such requirements (it being understood that nothing herein shall limit the Company’s obligations under Section 5(c) of the Purchase
Agreement) and the filing of such reports and other documents is required for the applicable provisions of Rule 144; and

 
c. furnish to the Investor, promptly upon request, (i) a written statement by the Company that it has complied with the reporting requirements of Rule 144, the

1933 Act and the 1934 Act, (ii) a copy of the most recent annual or quarterly report of the Company and such other reports and documents so filed by the
Company, and (iii) such other information as may be reasonably requested to permit the Investor to sell such securities pursuant to Rule 144 without
registration.

 
 



 
 

SECTION X
MISCELLANEOUS

 
9.1 NOTICES. Any notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under the terms of this Agreement that must be in writing will be deemed to

have been delivered (i) upon receipt, when delivered personally; (ii) upon receipt, when sent by email; or (iii) one (1) day after deposit with a nationally recognized overnight
delivery service, in each case properly addressed to the party to receive the same. The addresses for such communications shall be:
 
  If to the Company: One World Products, Inc.
    6605 Grand Montecito Pkwy., Suite 100
    Las Vegas, NV 89149
    Attn: Todd Peterson
     
  If to the Investor: AJB Capital Investments LLC
    4700 Sheridan Street, Suite J
    Hollywood, FL 33021
 

Each party shall provide five (5) business days prior notice to the other party of any change in address, phone number or facsimile number.
 

9.2 NO WAIVERS. Failure of any party to exercise any right or remedy under this Agreement or otherwise, or delay by a party in exercising such right or remedy,
shall not operate as a waiver thereof.
 

9.3 NO ASSIGNMENTS. The rights and obligations under this Agreement shall not be assignable.
 

9.4 ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT. This Agreement and the Registered Offering Transaction Documents constitute the entire agreement among the parties
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof. There are no restrictions, promises, warranties or undertakings, other than those set forth or referred to herein and
therein. This Agreement and the Registered Offering Transaction Documents supersede all prior agreements and understandings among the parties hereto with respect to the
subject matter hereof and thereof. The provisions of this Agreement may be amended only with the written consent of the Company and Investor.
 

9.5 HEADINGS. The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not limit or otherwise affect the meaning hereof. Whenever required
by the context of this Agreement, the singular shall include the plural and masculine shall include the feminine. This Agreement shall not be construed as if it had been prepared
by one of the parties, but rather as if all the parties had prepared the same.
 

9.6 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the different signatories hereto on separate counterparts, each of
which, when so executed, shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall constitute but one and the same instrument. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile
transmission, PDF, electronic signature or other similar electronic means with the same force and effect as if such signature page were an original thereof.
 
 



 
 

9.7 FURTHER ASSURANCES. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all
such other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
 

9.8 SEVERABILITY. In case any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessive in scope or otherwise invalid or
unenforceable, such provision shall be adjusted rather than voided, if possible, so that it is enforceable to the maximum extent possible, and the validity and enforceability of
the remaining provisions of this Agreement will not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
 

9.9 LAW GOVERNING THIS AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada without regard
to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the
state or federal courts located in New York City, New York. The parties to this Agreement hereby irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action
instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens. The parties executing this Agreement and
other agreements referred to herein or delivered in connection herewith on behalf of the Company agree to submit to the in personam jurisdiction of such courts and
hereby irrevocably waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. In the event that any
provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision
shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which
may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives
personal service of process and consents to process being served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Registered Offering
Transaction Documents by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for
notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be
deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law.
 

9.10 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof
be enforced by, any other person, except that the Company acknowledges that the rights of the Investor may be enforced by its general partner.
 

[Signature page follows]
 
 



 
 

Your signature on this Signature Page evidences your agreement to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Registration Rights Agreement as of the date first
written above. The undersigned signatory hereby certifies that he has read and understands the Registration Rights Agreement, and the representations made by the undersigned
in this Registration Rights Agreement are true and accurate, and agrees to be bound by its terms.

 
  AJB CAPITAL INVESTMENTS, LLC
     
  By: /s/ Ari Blaine
  Name: Ari Blaine
  Title: Partner
     
  ONE WORLD PRODUCTS, INC.
     
  By: /s/ Isiah Thomas
  Name: Isiah Thomas
  Title: Chief Executive Officer, Chairman
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE OF REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT]
 
 

 



 
EXHIBIT 31.1

 
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO

RULE 13A-14(A) OR RULE 15D-14(A),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

RULE 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

I, Isiah L. Thomas III, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of One World Products, Inc.;
   
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in

light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
   
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
   
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules

13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 
  a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that

material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to me by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

     
  b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under my supervision, to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

     
  c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
     
  d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter

(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting;

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

  a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

     
  b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
  /s/ Isiah L. Thomas III
  Isiah L. Thomas III
  Chief Executive Officer
   
Dated: July 5, 2023  
 
 



 
EXHIBIT 31.2

 
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO

RULE 13A-14(A) OR RULE 15D-14(A),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

RULE 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
I, Timothy Woods, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of One World Products, Inc.;
   
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in

light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
   
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
   
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules

13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 
  a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that

material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to me by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

     
  b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under my supervision, to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

     
  c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the

disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
     
  d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter

(the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting;

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

  a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

     
  b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
  /s/ Timothy Woods
  Timothy Woods
  Chief Financial Officer
   
Dated: July 5, 2023  
 
 



 
EXHIBIT 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
In connection with the Quarterly Report of One World Products, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2023 (the “Report”) I, Isiah L. Thomas
III, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best
of my knowledge and belief:
 
  1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
     
  2. Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: July 5, 2023  
   
/s/ Isiah L. Thomas III  
Name: Isiah L. Thomas III  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 
 



 
EXHIBIT 32.2

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
In connection with the Quarterly Report of One World Products, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2023 (the “Report”) I, Timothy Woods,
Principal Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of
my knowledge and belief:
 
  1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
     
  2. Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: July 5, 2023  
   
/s/ Timothy Woods  
Name: Timothy Woods  
Title: Chief Financial Officer  
 
 

 
 


